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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Business review

For 2012, the global economy continued to show weakness stemming
from the after effects of the financial crisis. The sovereign debt
crises, potential meltdown of the European banking system, and
political unrest in the Middle East continued to adversely impact the
economies of Europe and other advanced economics. Although the
Asian economies continued to show resiliency, growth in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”, or “China”) has slowed down. This macro
environment has created an adverse operating environment for the
alternative energy industry.

The harsh economic conditions in the European market has had an
adverse impact on the trading unit price on the Certified Emission
Reduction (“CER”) under the Clean Development Mechanism (“CDM”)
— the subsidy mechanism of the Kyoto Protocol in relation to the
environmental protection regime from the United Nations (“UN”). The
continuous significant decline in the CER price has triggered concerns
on the collectability of CER income and the recoverability of any future
CER income for alternative energy assets.

In China in 2012, in an attempt to reduce its overly rapid growth, and
prevent speculative excesses, the PRC government held back capital
expenditure and tightened finance liquidity. The pace of infrastructure
development, such as transmission grid development, has been slow,
creating temporary bottlenecks in the renewable energy despatch,
resulting in curtailment. The National Development and Reform
Committee (“NDRC”, or on provincial level, “DRC”) has introduced
more lengthy and complicated approval procedures for new projects.
This action aims to match the alternative energy development with
the transmission grid implementation pace so as to stabilise the
curtailment situation. Despite this effort, short term loss of revenue
due to power curtailment affected developers. In addition, on the
finance liquidity side, tightening of bank finance for the development
of new projects has affected the expansion plan of most alternative
energy players.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE” or the
“Company”, and with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) has
been adversely impacted by the unfavourable market and the poor
industrial conditions. As a result, the Group has slowed the pace of its
development in 2012. This includes slowing down the development of
the Phase Two 49.5 mega-watt (“MW”) wind farm project in Siziwang
Qi (“SZWQ”) in Western Inner Mongolia even though the full approval
from NDRC in the form of enlisting in China’s twelfth 5-year plan
(“12th FYP”) was received at the end of August 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FREHEE (H)

Business review (continued)

Most attention has been focused on enhancing the effectiveness and
efficiency of existing wind farm assets. Revenues generated from
the operating wind farms was HK$99.5 million, a slight improvement
from HK$89.9 million in 2011. Considerable effort has been made to
reduce the administrative costs of the Group. Despite having taken a
significant impairment loss on the estimated recoverable future CER
income in our wind farm assets, a non-cash accounting transaction
that will not bring about material adverse effect on the normal
operations, the Group’s balance sheet remains strong. The Group
has total assets of HK$2,519.7 million as at 31 December 2012 and
its cash position remains healthy, with cash and cash equivalents of
HK$238.2 million. This represents a basic net asset value per share of
HK$0.73.

Prospects

The outlook for 2013 remains subdued. Growth for the western
developed economies is likely to remain feeble given the continued
debate on how to reduce the budget deficit in the United States
and given the continuing uncertainty in the European Union. The
developing markets and the Asia-Pacific countries will continue to
lead economic growth. Unfortunately, the low CER market price in
a depressed European market is expected to continue for the near
future, before possibly recovering to a more reasonable price level
in late 2013. This will likely affect the future CER incomes for all
alternative energy operators.

In China, an “urbanisation” program has been launched as part of
the national plan to stimulate domestic demand in an economy that
previously relied on exports. This will increase demand for energy.
Also, the government continues to express support for the industry.
A notice from the State Council of China in the beginning of 2013
reconfirmed the alternative energy development targets stipulated in
the 12th FYP. The China’s new leadership continues to express its
verbal support for the alternative energy industry.

Despite good long term prospects, uncertainties, such as power
despatch curtailment due to the bottleneck in the transmission grid
and a tougher financing environment for alternative energy projects,
suggests that the Group should be cautious in its expansion plans.
As a result, the Group for 2013 will not seek to rapidly expand, but
will primarily focus on maintaining its existing wind farm assets. As
a return-focussed developer-investor-operator, new projects in the
pipeline will only be developed when curtailment is assessed to be a
non-issue and sufficient bank financing at reasonable cost has been
secured. Procedures and safety of existing assets will also be re-
examined to streamline the operation and to improve the effectiveness
and efficiency of the wind assets.

y

¥KEE®)
BMERRABITRNSHINK - REFEEZR
N5 P8 U %5 599,500,000 T » B - T ——
F #989,900,00078 7T E 4 £ F+ o o - FAIIR
BHREREBENITHRAS - @ARMEBR NS
BEFHAREREBERE EZESEEL
TERBES  HATHEETERUERTIF
2 mAKEMEEEERIEAERE BEZ
T——_F+-_A=1+—HLt AEERALTEE
2,519,700,000/% T * MR RIBE - B RIF
&£ E¥ /238,200,000 7T - MEBKREEFE
B0.738B 7T °

Al =

RE-T—=F  KENDHEX - BET@E - X
BIHR M R FRFRIDAER - MENENER
AR - Bt - IO ERERNQERKE
MR- ERTARBERMEBERDER - BIGEE
TR R - AT - RBWBUMNTIS - SEE
THEERN  RERFENTSERRE  EF-
T=FTHFRY BRI AFELREEZSEK
F o Bt - FTABREEREERRKAOZERBE
BRAHEER -

FERRAMAR  ROEECBERKELD
EHETTHEAE 5T o EEBRSRIAT BErsE
IRFTR o HHh - REEERASIERERE
TEBEKRER —F-=FFEELIBRN B
HE S T AR FAEPIIRNERERE
RER - H—ENHEREEREER TSR
REERZE -

HEATEREMNSLE  BEHETRMNASIBE
B URBRERAEBEARESTHPRE -
REAEEZEREFERS - Bt - AEEHE
—E-=HFfERNER MERTHEEREN
RAGEE - AEBEFRERE  REFRLE
BH=EF7  BRIERABENLEE - FAitR
BEZE BRREMELREHASERARG
RANRITRER - T SRRF[BETOHER -
AN - B E IR AT IR A R 5 EEVEIZ FF A
ZERIZE - ABLEE - R -

FEBEERRERRAT 5
—E-FFR



Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FEHESE(H)

Prospects (continued)
Over the long term, the management will continue to properly manage
the Group’s assets portfolio, strengthen the capital base and broaden
its investment platform so as to ensure CRE generates the best
returns for its shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2012, China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited (“CRE” or the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) recorded a turnover on its
alternative energy assets of HK$99.5 million, an increase of 11%
from HK$89.9 million for the same period in 2011. Gross profit was
HK$20.1 million which was 83% higher than the gross profit of
HK$11.0 million in 2011. This was a result of the Group’s effective
control of operating costs and slight increase in power despatch from
reduction in curtailment.

Wind farm assets in our associated companies continued to
contribute profits to the Group at HK$80.7 million. Profit contribution
from these associate companies increased by 20% compared to the
same period in 2011 mainly due to a one-off tax benefit HK$22.9
million granted to one of the associate companies.

With a lower trading price of CRE’s shares compared to 2011, a fair
value gain of HK$7.1 million was recognised on the investment right
granted to the private investment firm TPG Growth (with its subsidiary
STAR Butterfly Energy Ltd. (“STAR”), collectively, the “TPG”) on
23 November 2010. However, a reversal result might occur in the
following years if future trading price of CRE’s shares rises.

On administrative expenses, the Group has put considerable effort
in reducing spending, including cutting headcount, from HK$65.6
million in 2011 to HK$37.5 million in 2012. However, due to the
continuous decline of the market unit price for Certified Emission
Reduction (“CER”) under the Clean Development Mechanism (“CDM”),
which is the subsidy mechanism of the Kyoto Protocol in relation
to the environmental protection regime from the United Nations
(“UN”), the future CER income derived from our wind farm assets is
uncertain. This affected all alternative energy players. Accordingly,
an impairment loss of HK$133.5 million for our wind farm assets was
provided. This accounting treatment is non-cash in nature and will not
materially adverse affect the Group’s normal operations and current
cash position.

The Group reported a net loss after tax attributable to the equity
holders of HK$82.7 million for 2012 (2011: a net profit after tax
of HK$13.2 million). Basic loss per share were HK3.51 cents as
compared to last year basic earnings per share of HK1.12 cents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BEEEFNWR DN (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s total bank borrowings was
HK$623.1 million as compared to HK$688.7 million in 2011. The
difference was mainly due to repayment of principal instalments and
currency exchange difference.

The bank borrowings included interest-bearing Renminbi bank
loans to the Group’s wind farm projects in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”, or “China”), with interest rates fixed at the People’s
Bank of China rates. The maturity dates for the Group’s outstanding
borrowings were spread over the next ten years. There were HK$70.9
million repayable within one year, HK$283.5 million repayable within
two to five years and HK$268.7 million repayable after five years.

Convertible notes of principal amount RMB73.5 million (equivalent
to HK$83.1 million) issued in 2009 (“CN 2009") to HKC (Holdings)
Limited (“HKC”, and with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “HKC
Group”) for the acquisition of an effectively 10% equity interest
of the Danjinghe wind farm project company was fully repaid on
30 December 2012. A new convertible notes of principal amount
RMB75.0 million (equivalent to HK$93.2 million) (“CN 2012”) was
issued to HKC on 18 December 2012 to raise fund for financing
future project development, providing working capital and repaying
borrowings, including CN 2009. The notes are three years with
early redemption by both issuer and holder. It bears interest on its
outstanding principal amount at 6.4% per annum accrued every
year but pays arrears on the maturity date or, in the event of early
redemption any part in relation to the principal amount that has been
converted prior to the maturity date, on the date of such redemption.
The conversion price of CN 2012 is fixed at HK$0.68. The notional
loan amount of CN 2012 was HK$93.5 million as at 31 December
2012.

The Group’s unrestricted cash and cash equivalent were HK$238.2
million as at 31 December 2012 as compared to HK$338.8 million
in 2011. Such decrease arose from normal operation spending and
construction work payments. For future project development, the
Group will actively seek bank financing and other source of investment
funding to finance its future capital expenditure commitments.

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the period under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWR DT (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries have charged their assets including wind
power equipment, construction in progress, prepaid land lease
payments and trade receivables, worth approximately RMB809.9
million (equivalent to HK$1,007.3 million) as security for the
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2012. Same assets, worth
approximately RMB836.7 million (equivalent to HK$1,032.6 million),
were charged as at 31 December 2011. Appreciation of the Renminbi
currency gave rise to the variance in assets value.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s gearing ratio, which was the
total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, excluding the cash
and cash equivalents related to the discontinued software business
but including restricted cash, divided by total equity, was 28% as
compared to 24% as at 31 December 2011.

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2012 (Nil as at 31 December 2011).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Year 2012 was a difficult one for the alternative energy business. The
slow economic recovery of the United States of America (“US”) and
the problematic Euro zone dampened the prospects for alternative
energy development and the CER trading. The market unit price
for CER has dropped to another record low. Domestically in China,
following consecutive years of high economic growth, the government
has fine-tuned economic and fiscal policies to maintain moderate
growth with manageable inflation. Slowing down transmission
grid development, lengthening new project approval process and
tightening project financing were the inevitable consequences. These
changes have led to unexpected power despatch curtailment, delay in
tariff subsidies settlement and difficulties in obtaining project finance
for alternative energy projects. In response to these changes in the
operation environment, the Group has slowed down its expansion
plans for wind power projects.

The Group has successfully secured the final approval for the
Siziwang Qi Phase Two project (“SZWQ 1I”), the second 49.5 mega-
watt (“MW?”) project of a potential 1000 MW wind farm complex in
West Inner Mongolia, from the National Development and Reform
Committee (“NDRC” or, on provincial level, “DRC”). The project is now
officially listed in China’s twelfth Five-Year Plan. For another pipeline
project in Kulun Qi of Tongliao City, East Inner Mongolia, Phase One
49.5 MW out of the potential maximum 200 MW wind farm is still
pending local DRC approval.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BEEEFNWR DN (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In 2012, the operational performance for most of the Group’s existing
alternative energy assets, comprising wind farms with a gross total
power generating capacity of 610.5MW and a 25MW waste-to-energy
plant, was slightly better than the previous year despite the poor wind
resources in the first half of 2012. Considerable efforts have been
made to enhance the safety and reliability of these assets. Effective
controls over the spending, improvement on the curtailment of most
wind assets and granting of a one-off special tax benefit in one of the
associated wind farm helped increase the Group’s revenue.

Mudanjiang and Muling wind farms, located in Heilongjiang province,
have a total of 59.5 MW of wind power capacity. The wind farms
started commercial operation in the fourth quarter of 2007. The Group
holds majority stakes of 86% and 86.68% respectively. Despite wind
resources that were lower than the previous year, power despatch
was around 64.4 million Kilowatt-hour (“KWh”) for 2012, which
was better than last year. A slight improvement in the curtailment
situation and more effective control of the spending accounted for the
improvement. More improvement is expected in the next several years
as the transmission infrastructure is enhanced.

Siziwang Qi Phase | wind farm has a total of 49.5 MW of wind
power capacity and is wholly-owned by the Group. It is located 16
kilometres (“km”) north of Wulanhua under Siziwang Qi of Western
Inner Mongolia. Commercial operation started January 2011. The
wind farm is the first phase of a strategic 1,000 MW wind farm base
for the Group. Siziwang Qi Phase | wind farm despatched 94.7 million
KWh for 2012, slightly better than last year. This is due to our effective
control of the curtailment, maintaining curtailment at a better than
regional average level.

The Group has a 40% effective equity interest in the 200 MW
Danjinghe wind farm located in Hebei. The majority and controlling
shareholder is the wind division subsidiary of China Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection Group (collectively
“CECEP”), who holds 60%. The wind farm started commercial
operation in January and September 2010. The power despatched
was around 483.0 million KWh. The operating performance was
slightly better than 2011. A one-off special tax benefit was obtained
which boosted profits.

10 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Changma wind farm, located in Gansu province, is a joint venture
with CECEP. The Group has a 40% effective interest in the project
company. The 201 MW wind farm started commercial operation
in November 2010. Despite curtailment caused by the technical
problems of the regional transmission line being severe in the first
half of 2012, the National Energy Administration of PRC issued
instructions to help improve the situation in July. As a result,
curtailment was reduced, and Changma despatched around 348.6
million KWh, which was slightly better than in 2011.

Lunaobao wind farm is a joint venture with CECEP adjacent to the
Danjinghe wind farm. The Group has a 30% effective equity interest.
The wind farm capacity is 100.5 MW and it started commercial
operation in February 2011. The power despatched in 2012 was
198.5 million KWh, which was not as good as in 2011. Curtailment
increased at the end of 2012 as new wind farms came into operation,
creating bottlenecks in the transmission. The situation is expected to
last for a while until new transmission infrastructure is put in place.

Linyi waste-to-energy plant of 25MW power generating capacity is a
joint venture with CECEP located in Shandong province. The Group
owns a 40% effective equity interest. The plant went into commercial
operation in September 2007. In 2012, approximately 417,000 tonnes
of garbage was being handled and 108.1 million KWh of power was
despatched.

OUTLOOK

Although several developed countries, such as Canada and Japan,
exited the agreement, other countries attending the UN Climate
Change Conference COP18/CMP18 in Doha during November 2012
agreed to extend the effective period of the Kyoto Protocol, under
which the CDM leading to the CER trade operates, for another
8 years, allowing more time to implementing new infrastructure
to support and finance environmental protection schemes. This
agreement is expected to benefit the CER market and the alternative
energy operators over the long term.

In China, the newly elected PRC government has issued an
implementation notice in January 2013 restating the importance of
alternative energy under China’s twelfth 5-year plan (“12th FYP”) and
clearly demonstrating the government’s continued support for the
industry. However, severe curtailment, lengthy approval process,
difficulty in obtaining project finance and delays in subsidy tariff
settlement will continue to adversely impact the industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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OUTLOOK (continued)

Given the current operating environment, the Group will place
considerable focus on managing the existing alternative energy
assets instead of focusing on near term expansion. In line with
our long term value preservation strategy, enhancements, such as
technical modifications for regulating power despatch imposed by the
government, will be implemented to improve the effectiveness and
efficiency of the wind farm assets. Operation and safety procedures
will be fine-tuned and benchmarked to the industry’s best practice
standards in order to minimise the operational risk and to reduce
production costs further.

Over the long term, the Group will consider expansion in the
wind sector and exploring the feasibility of investing into other
forms of alternative energy to safeguard shareholder value. The
China alternative energy policy and the transmission infrastructure
development status will be closely monitored. The pace of investment
will be adjusted accordingly after careful analysis of investment risks,
returns and commercial viability. The project pipeline will be properly
managed, keeping only high-quality projects. As always, the Group
will actively search for strategic alliances to secure investment funding
and expansion opportunities for our platform in order to generate
greater value for our shareholders.

As at the end of December 2012, the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong and mainland China employed a total of 71 employees. The
Group had also appointed technical consultants on contract terms
for its alternative energy projects. All employees are remunerated
according to the nature of their jobs, their individual performances, the
Group’s overall performance, and the prevailing marketing conditions.
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Annual Report 2012

Bl = (4)

TR QLB - AEBEERSREAN
BREGEEE  MIEZMNEIIEE - AEES
EREEREEHOKNR  REBTAEHER
= ETRMSE - LR NISEE MR RR

ME - REBEK2BERNREEFRE - 4H
EBENREOER - LRSS ERR N E—

FIRIEEERA ©

\|

REXRF AREEZRBERANEERS - A
BB EMBR B RAERM AT ITIE - AEER
RH@IR - AEEKETE BHENERERK
FUNBEEZNER J\mn*ﬁ&ﬁl—wﬁ‘
WEEERITIER - BEBRENSK - ZEHWE
BRI RRIEE A RREEEHEE - ZIKEI%H
—MAE  BMESEREBESERH - REMAN
FEMBREFRBUALBREBOKS - UER
PIRAIEE RE @R o

R-FE-——F+_AK  AEERBERPERA
W2 EBRERERTIREER - AEETFAGH

AR EREERER ZERMER - IBEEH
MiziRs TIEME - EAKRE  REBEE:
BRERTRAMETE °



Corporate Governance Report
ERME

Corporate Governance Practices

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”, and
with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good
corporate governance principles and practices and its board of
directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognises that it is essential
to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and employees
and uphold accountability, transparency and responsibility of the
Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions and certain recommended best practices set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices which was amended as
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) effective on 1 April
2012, contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December
2012, save for the deviations with considered reasons as explained
stated in the following relevant paragraphs.

Board of Directors

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31 December
2012 maintained a balanced board with strong independent element.
The Board currently comprises seven Directors with three Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Each Director possesses expertise and
experience and provides checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole. In
addition, the Company had maintained three Independent Non-
executive Directors which formed at least one-third of the full Board.
Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships, where
applicable, are set out in pages 29 to 33 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors was
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has provided to the Company
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of them are
independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERKRE (E)

Board of Directors (continued)

According to the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be separate and performed
by different individuals. Under the current organization structure of
the Company, the functions of CEO are performed by the Chairman,
Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric, with support from the Vice Chairman and the other
Executive Director. The Board considers that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company, and has been effective in discharging
its responsibilities satisfactorily and facilitating the Company’s
operation and business development. The Board will review the
structure from time to time to ensure it continues to meet the principle
and will consider segregation of the roles of chairman and CEO if and
when appropriate.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs and
formulating business strategies with a view to maximising its financial
performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers to
the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing those
functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of the
Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions and
investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority of
the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference or the
threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company as defined
in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved for the Board;
whereas decisions on matters set out in the terms of reference of
the Executive Committee and those not specifically reserved for the
Board are delegated to the Executive Committee and management,
as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense and are encouraged to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently. The management provides monthly
management accounts of the Group to the Directors to apprise them
of the Group’s latest performance and financial position.

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time of
his appointment and in a timely manner for any change, the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments. Such changes will be updated and
published in the annual and interim reports as appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERKRE (E)

Board of Directors (continued)

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis.

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are first
considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such
as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to
carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.
Details of the role and function as well as a summary of the work
performed by the Nomination Committee are set out under the
heading of “Nomination Committee” below.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), the nearest to but not less than one-third of
the Directors shall retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-
election by shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that
every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject to re-
election by shareholders at the next following annual general meeting.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company were
appointed with no specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid
rotation requirement in the Articles of Association, accomplishing
the same purpose as being appointed for a specific term pursuant
to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. The rotating Directors who
are subject to retirement and re-election at the 2013 annual general
meeting are set out on page 36 of this Annual Report.

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange ideas
on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up various Board
Committees, among others, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Executive Committee
and the Investment Committee for overseeing particular aspects of
the Group’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee are
available on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERKRE (E)

Board of Directors (continued) EEgm@
During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit FR BE®  BXRZEE  RERZES L
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration SEe RS en  SREENREeE L
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at ~ EEREHN TX :
these meetings is set out in the table below:
Number of meetings attended/held
BHE BITEEHE
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EBHE BExg EREES FHEES REZEE
Executive Directors 11T E%E
Mr. Ol Kang, Eric ZM/I%t4 8/8  2/2 (Note KfzF)  1/1 (Note KfzE)  1/1 (Note FiI=E)
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie SR &4 7/8  2/2 (Note FliF¥)  1/1 (Note FizF)  1/1 (Note Fii5)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel 24754 8/8  2/2 (Note Miisf)  1/1 (Note Pif3E)  1/1 (Note i &)
Dr. YUNG Pak Keung, Bruce R{R5& 18+ 5/6  2/2 (Note ffzF)  1/1 (Note BizF)  1/1 (Note Ff=F)

(resigned on 18 September 2012)

(R=ZFB—ZFNA+/AFE)
Non-executive Director E#I{TESE
Mr. WANG Sing Tt % & 3/8 0/4 N/A TE A N/A A
Mr. TSANG Chi Kin G £ ##5t 4 8/8 2/4 N/A @A N/A @A

(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

(THALEZEREE)
Independent Non-executive Directors B E#{TEE
Mr. ZHANG Songyi 5RME%E 5t 4 5/8 4/4 11 1/1
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Emest E8Jk B 5t 4 8/8 4/4 11 1/1
Mr. YU Hon To, David 81/2E 5t 8/8 4/4 11 11

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as invitees.

Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board
and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The
agenda and accompanying board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers
and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised
of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their
views known to the Chairman and CEO prior to the meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERKRE (E)

Board of Directors (continued)

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are recorded
in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board and the
committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by the Directors. Draft minutes of each board meeting and committee
meeting are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable
time after the date of the meeting. All Directors have access to the
Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that the board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

The Chairman and CEO acknowledged the significance of promoting
a culture of openness and debate among the Board members. To
facilitate the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors, the
Chairman and CEO held a meeting with Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors without the other Executive
Directors present in June 2012.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee, chaired by
an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three members
namely Mr. ZHANG Songyi, Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest and Mr. YU Hon
To, David, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult with the
Chairman and CEO whenever it thinks fit and take into consideration
factors such as the remuneration paid by comparable companies,
skill, knowledge, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors.
On 9 March 2012, the Board adopted a set of the revised terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee with the operation model
that the Remuneration Committee has the responsibility, powers
and discretion to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to review the Executive Directors’ remuneration for the
year ended 31 December 2011 and also the remuneration policy and
structure for the Directors, including those retired and re-elected at
the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company. No Director was
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The attendance records
of each member at the meetings of the Remuneration Committee are
set out on page 16. Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the year are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERKRE (E)

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired by an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three members
namely Mr. ZHANG Songyi, Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest and Mr. YU
Hon To, David, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year, and the
attendance details of each member are set out on page 16.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board at least annually, identifying
suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, and making recommendations
to the Board on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination Committee
includes the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
° reviewing the structure of board committees;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and sufficient number of independent directors to
maintain a balanced board;

° making recommendation to the Board relating to the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors; and

° making recommendations to the Board on directors’ continuous
professional development.

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference which have been updated from time to time to align with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four
members namely Mr. ZHANG Songyi, Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest,
Mr. YU Hon To, David, who are Independent Non-executive Directors
and Mr. WANG Sing, who is a Non-executive Director.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to, inter
alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management procedures, as well as oversee
the adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting resources.
While recognised corporate governance is the collective responsibility
of all Directors, the Board has delegated the corporate governance
functions to the members of Audit Committee who are in an objective
and independent position to oversee the corporate governance
compliance.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERKRE (E)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings
together with senior management and external auditor and two
private meetings with the external auditor without the management’s
presence. The attendance details of each member are set out on page
16. The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
included reviewing interim and annual financial statements, continuing
connected transactions, internal audit reports on the internal controls
and risk management matters, the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance as well as reviewing and recommending re-
appointment of external auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for employees
to raise concerns, in confidence, with the designated executive who
is accountable to the Audit Committee about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, unlawful activities, or activities violating
the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business Ethics or otherwise
amounting to serious improper conduct and to ensure protection from
possible retaliation against any of our employees who has reported
concerns in good faith.

Executive Committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with the key
initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities, and oversee
the operating performance and financial position of the Group and
all strategic business units. The Committee comprises all Executive
Directors and a senior executive of the Group. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is
the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met regularly
to review the performance of various business units of the Group, co-
ordinate overall resources, made financial and operation decisions
delegated by the Board, review and develop investment strategy and
policies of the Company and make relevant recommendations to the
Board.

Investment Committee

The Company has established an Investment Committee with written
terms of reference. The Investment Committee, chaired by Mr. OEI
Kang, Eric, comprises four members namely Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric,
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie, Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, who
are Executive Directors, and Mr. WANG Sing, who is a Non-executive
Director.

The principal responsibilities of the Investment Committee are to, inter
alia, review and approve the Group’s material capital expenditures,
monitor the execution of the investment on an ongoing basis, review
and approve periodically policies and guidelines governing the
Group’s investment portfolio, and monitor compliance with those
policies.
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Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of the
Company and a senior executive, is delegated with responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board
from time to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the
Group. Executive Directors and the senior executive meet regularly
to review the performance of the businesses of various business
units of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and
make financial and operation decisions. The Board also gives clear
directions as to their powers of management including circumstances
where management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries, the Company has obtained confirmation from all Directors
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the securities of
the Group, on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 which
give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In preparing the
financial statements, the Directors have adopted generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 59 to 60.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the auditor
amounted to approximately HK$2,020,000 and HK$820,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim results
review services, corporate exercise professional fee and tax advisory
services.
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Directors’ Training

During the period between 1 April 2012 and 31 December 2012, all
Directors have participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The training
programmes included seminars and courses, reviewed the updated
laws, rules and regulations and materials on topics relevant to the
director’s duties and responsibilities. Directors are requested to
provide the Company with their respective training record. The
training received by each Director is set out below:
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Training
N

Name of Directors Read materials Attend Seminars
EEpg MEGEER HEWSE
Executive Directors #I{TESE
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric &Il 44 v
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie IR E k4 v 4
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel 22237564 v/ v
Dr. YUNG Pak Keung, Bruce Z{A3&E+ - -

(resigned on 18 September 2012)

(RZF—ZFNAT/NAEHTE)
Non-executive Director JEH{TES
Mr. WANG Sing T #5t 4 v
Mr. TSANG Chi Kin @ #2564 v 4

(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

(FHELEERESE)
Independent Non-executive Directors B EHITES
Mr. ZHANG Songyi 3 1838 5 4 v 4
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest BIJK B % 4 4 4
Mr. YU Hon To, David &1£E 54 v v

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. In
addition, the Directors are regularly encouraged to enroll in a wide
range of professional development courses and seminars regarding
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirement to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

ARRFBRNESTRERIER - AEREFHEE
FRMEEGSEARERRRZ&RABR - Ei
EITRE - b9 ARFRBEEERS AR
EHRAREMEEREZ SEEXBRRER
Mg UREREHREEXERFRZRA
H o

FEBEERRERRAT 21
—E-FFR



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (H)

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness, while management is charged with the
responsibility to design and implement the internal control system to
manage risks and compliance. The Group has in place a framework
of internal controls that is consistent with the COSO (the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission) framework
which has the following five components:

Control Environment

. Risk awareness and control consciousness are built into the culture of
the Group.

o MARKENOECAEY ER R REEEE

. Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and
high ethical standards to the staff are established.

o RUREMETEEARRAHBOBERBIERSBEBRT A -
. Organisation structure, limits of authority and responsibility are set and
communicated to staff concerned.

o RUMAHEE BN LREREEHE  WEEEITERLAS -

Risk Assessment A

. Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risks affecting the
achievement of the Group’s objectives are conducted regularly,
forming the basis for determining control activities.

o EHHER  FHERIRFEAKEEREREZEERR - #MERR
TEEIER 2 EHE o

Control Activities A

. Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried
out.

. Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right
person in a timely manner.

o ERHEA - MERRMEE ATRMERER -
. Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties
are established.

o RURKESHPIZEUREIRALZERRE -
. Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected

improprieties.
o BBRSHMTEIARLEBRE -
Monitoring h

¢ Ongoing assessment of effectiveness of internal control system.

o FSEITRNERELIE RAT L AL ©

e Close supervision of management and designated executives.

s EERERIFARTHABRTEE -

. Internal audit activities to identify control weaknesses for timely
rectification.

o FEBNIEDEDHAIEIEIE - WERAE

N

-
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Effectiveness
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operations

BEMEREE

Reliability of
financial reporting

B3 B 2 A S

o HIEBRRRIEF - WRERREZHETREANT -

. Control activities include authorisation, approval, performance review,
segregation of duties, asset security, access control,
documentation and records, etc.
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Internal Controls (continued)

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices within
the Group are transparent to all. The Group strives to conduct all
business affairs based on good business ethics and accountability.
We have in place a formal Code of Conduct & Business Ethics that is
communicated to all staff members. We aim to build risk awareness
and control responsibility into our culture and regard them as the
foundation of our internal control system.

The internal control system is designed to manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. We
maintain an effective internal audit function, the Internal Control
and Risk Management (“ICRM”) Department, whose main features
include:

(i) independence from operational management;

(i)  fully empowered auditors with access to all data and every
operation of the Group;

(i)  adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff; and

(iv)  risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with significant risks
or where significant changes have been made.

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate the
significant risks facing the Group and prioritise resources to manage
those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans with respect to each
key risk identified are developed and implemented with regular review
and update, which include establishing or enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving the
objectives of their particular departments, activities and businesses
to provide reasonable assurance that internal controls are both
embedded and effective within their areas of accountability.
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Internal Controls (continued) A 2P EE I (4m)

The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control system  EE&FE B TIIILT @ 15172 A M R EPE 1%

through the following: HE -

()  The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and objectives on () EFE&SFRIANEENBRTEINEE -
an annual basis.

(i)  An organisation structure with defined lines of responsibility and (i) &I B S & K& 5 & 2 2 A8 2EH -
delegation of authority is devised.

(i)  Systems and procedures are in place to identify and evaluate (i) B HIENIEF - HEBRIRTFERR
risks on an ongoing basis. Senior management reviews the EREEABARRN AR EEF RE
risk assessment process and monitors the effectiveness of the BAREERREIR R 2 MEE
Group’s risk management systems.

(iv) Appropriate policies and key control activities are maintained  (v) HERTAENRE R T BEEEH I
with regular review on their effectiveness. T AR AT LR -

(v)  Financial performance is analysed against budget with variances  (v) B BRBEBEELRSN - ZEEH

(vi)

(vil)

being accounted for and appropriate actions are taken to rectify
deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and the CEO, and carries out independent reviews on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system in
accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee. Key audit findings and implementation progress
of internal control recommendations are regularly reported to
the Board through the Audit Committee. Head of the ICRM
Department also serves as the contact person under the
Whistleblowing Guideline adopted in 2012.

(vi)

(vii)
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The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a certification of
compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability
of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations bi-annually. The scope of this review covers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.
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Internal Controls (continued)

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommmendations, and
opinion of the ICRM Department on the control systems’ performance
of the Group. External auditors also report on any control issues
identified in the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system at least once each
year and reports to the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s internal control system effective and
adequate for the year ended 31 December 2012. No significant areas
of concern that might affect the operational, financial, and compliance
controls and risk management function of the Group were identified.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules
and statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper
disclosure of price-sensitive information, announcements and
financial disclosures and authorises their publication as and
when required.

(i)  has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing the
securities transactions of those employees who, because of
their positions, are likely to have access to confidential or inside
information.

(i) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and CEO on Board
or committee matters and to the Head of Legal on administrative
matters. She is an employee of HKC Group who serves both the
Company and its holding company, HKC. All Directors have direct
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary for the
ongoing discharge of their duties and responsibilities. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2012, the Company Secretary took more
than 15 hours of relevant professional training organised by the Stock
Exchange and various professional bodies.

Constitutional Documents of the Company

The Company has published its updated and consolidated version of
Memorandum and Articles of Association at the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. During the year, there was no alteration
on the constitutional documents of the Company.
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General Meetings

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on 1
June 2012 (the “2012 AGM”). The Chairman and CEO chaired the
2012 AGM. The external auditor attended the 2012 AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence. For the extraordinary general meeting at which
connected transactions were considered, an Independent Non-
executive Director was invited to chair the general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. In
addition, independent financial advisers were also available to answer
questions from the shareholders of the Company.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2012 AGM
and extraordinary general meetings is set out in the table below:

BRERXE

Rpdl E—ERFRAFRAENR_E—Z_FA—
BRIT(IZZE—ZFRREFARE]) - TFFK
TRABETI S ——FRERAFRKESEE b
BESArEE T —FRFBEFKRES AR
ZEAZE - ZEBMBRECRREAD - SFTK
BRAZEBEMB T2 IRM c R E L EEBER
SGZBRRERREME  — 2BV IENTESE
BIEAZBREASTE  UEEEREER - Itk
Sh o B MEEETNEHERE - LLEERAF
A

BEEN T —_FRRBEFRGRBRRFHIKR
G2 HHERERIINT

Number of meetings attended/held

BHE EBITE3RHA
Name of Directors 2012 AGM EGM
EEHE —E-=F
BRREFASE BRGBIRE

Executive Directors $1{TE %
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric =%t &£ 11 1/2
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie 3R F 54 1/1 2/2
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel 23R %t 4 1/1 2/2
Dr. YUNG Pak Keung, Bruce A58+ 1/1 1/1

(resigned on 18 September 2012)

(R=ZFE—Z—FNA+NHEHTE)
Non-executive Director JEH{TESE
Mr. WANG Sing T #t%t 4 0/1 0/2
Mr. TSANG Chi Kin & Z§ %4 11 1/2

(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

(FHMIELEZERESE)
Independent Non-executive Directors B HITES
Mr. ZHANG Songyi 5k 85 54 0/1 0/2
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest BJk5n % 4 1/1 2/2
Mr. YU Hon To, David &132E 5t £ 11 2/2

Note: Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director are
required to attend general meetings pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of
the CG Code effective from 1 April 2012. All Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Director were encouraged to attend the general
meetings to inter-face with shareholders of the Company but some of
them were not in a position to attend the general meetings due to overseas
commitment and pre-arranged business engagements.
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Shareholders Rights

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and put forward
proposals at general meetings

Shareholders can put forward their proposals at an extraordinary
general meeting. Procedures for the shareholders of the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting is
provided for under Article 58 of the Articles of Association.

Under Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any member(s)
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition (“Requisitionists”).

The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution for the Company’s reference and consideration,
signed by the all Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office of the
Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the “Branch Share
Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share Registrars’ confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company will
convene an extraordinary general meeting within two months
after the deposit of such requisition, and will serve sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements to all members of the Company.

Procedures for election of directors of the Company

The procedures for the shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director of the Company are available
and accessible on the Company’s website at www.cre987.com.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our shareholders
understand our business better. Copies of the annual reports and
interim reports of the Company are distributed to its shareholders
in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements and also
to interested parties recorded in the Company’s mailing lists. The
publications of the Company, including financial reports, circulars
and announcements, are also available on the Company’s website at
www.cre987.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors, and
the poll procedures are clearly explained. The Chairman and CEO,
other members of the Board, the Chairmen of the relevant Board
Committees and the external auditor of the Company attended the
annual general meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions from
the shareholders of the Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the following
ways:

Post: 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
E-mail: info@cre987.com

Fax: (852) 2722 1323
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEE

Directors

(Executive Director, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 42, has been appointed as Executive
Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
10 April 2008. He also holds several directorships in other members
of the Group and the chairman of the Investment Committee and
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. OEl was educated in
the USA and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Economics (with a
minor in Electrical Engineering), and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration. Earlier in his career, he worked with Peregrine
Securities Ltd. and PCCW Limited in Hong Kong, the LG Group in
Seoul and McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr. OEl is currently
an Executive Director of HKC (Holdings) Limited ("HKC", and with
its subsidiaries, collectively, the “HKC Group”), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange") and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of HKC. Mr. OEl
is also a director and a shareholder of Claudio Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of HKC.

(Executive Director & Vice Chairman)

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie, aged 58, is an Executive Director and
the Vice Chairman of the Company since 1 September 2010. Since
1 September 2010, Mr. CHANG has been appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of HKC. He also serves as
a director of certain members of the Group, vice-chairman of the
Investment Committee and a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company.

Mr. CHANG was graduated from George Mason University in U.S.A.,
he is a certified public accountant in the State of New York, a member
of The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHANG started his career at US Office of KPMG (formerly
known as KPMG Peat Marwick) (the "Firm") and became a partner
specializing in the financial services industry. He was also the Firm's
director of Chinese Practice in the United States. He then joined CITIC
Pacific Ltd in 1994 and was an Executive Director and the Deputy
Managing Director of the company. He also served as an alternate
director on the board of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited. Both CITIC
Pacific Ltd and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHANG is also an independent non-executive director of Pou
Sheng International (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREERE (B)

(Executive Director)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, aged 49, has been appointed as
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
1 December 2008. He joined the Group in April 2008 as Qualified
Accountant of the Company. He also holds several directorships
in other members of the Group and is a member of the Investment
Committee and the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr.
LEUNG is a certified practising accountant of CPA Australia. Mr.
LEUNG obtained a Master's Degree in Business from RMIT University
of Australia. He has over 20 years' experience in auditing and
finance management with an international audit firm and other major
conglomerates in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LEUNG
was a director of internal control and risk management of HKC. He is
currently also a director of certain subsidiaries of HKC.

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. WANG Sing, aged 49, has been appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company since 8 June 2011. He is also a member of
the Investment Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. WANG is a partner of TPG ("TPG"), a private equity investment
firm, an affiliate of Star Butterfly Energy, Ltd. ("Star Butterfly"), which
has substantial interests in the preference shares of the Company.
Mr. WANG is the Co-Chairman of TPG Greater China and Head of
TPG Growth North Asia. Prior to joining TPG, Mr. WANG was Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of TOM Group Limited. He
spent seven years at Goldman Sachs in both New York and Hong
Kong in various positions including Executive Director and Head of
China High Technology in Hong Kong. He was a founding member
of the firm's Asian private equity team and headed their China
Investment Projects. Before Goldman Sachs, he was a Manager at
HSBC Private Equity in Hong Kong and a strategic consultant with
McKinsey & Co., in Chicago, U.S.A.

Mr. WANG graduated from Yunnan University, China with a Bachelor
degree in Science and holds a Master of Science degree in forestry
and its relation to land use, a Master and a Bachelor of Arts degree
in philosophy, politics and economics from Oxford University. He is
currently director of MIE Holdings Corporation (stock code: 1555 and
listed on the Stock Exchange). He is also the Chairman of Amerinvest
Group of Companies and a Standing Committee Member of the
10th Yunnan Provincial Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference. Mr. WANG is a Listing Committee member
of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREERE (B)

(Alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

Mr. TSANG Chi Kin, aged 47, has been appointed as an alternate
director to Mr. WANG Sing, Non-executive Director of the Company,
since 8 June 2011. Mr. TSANG is an operating partner of TPG.
He joined TPG Growth as an Operating Partner in 2007 and leads
portfolio management for TPG Growth's North Asia investments,
notably the group's investments in ShangPharma Corporation, MIE
Holdings Corporation and NT Pharma (Holdings) Company Limited.
Prior to joining TPG, Mr. TSANG was with Australian Capital Equity
("ACE") since 2000, both in their London and Beijing offices. He was
the Managing Director of China who oversaw the group's investment
activities in the region and also served as the Managing Director of the
WesTrac China dealership. Mr. TSANG also served as Chairman of
the Caterpillar China Dealers' Association.

Before joining ACE, Mr. TSANG worked for The Walt Disney
Company from 1994 to 2000. During that time, he was the Director
of Business Planning and Development of Asia-Pacific for Walt Disney
Imagineering, the theme park and real estate division of Disney, where
he initiated and shepherded the Hong Kong Disneyland deal to its
completion. Prior to his time at Disney, Mr. TSANG worked at The
Boston Consulting Group in Asia-Pacific and at Citibank in the U.S.

Mr. TSANG holds an MBA in Management and Marketing from
Northwestern University, and a BS in Operations Research & Industrial
Engineering from Cornell University. Mr. TSANG is an active member
and the Treasurer of the China Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association and also the inaugural President of its Young Venture
Capitalist Club. He is also serving on the Executive Committee of the
Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association and also
on the HKTDC Financial Services Advisory Committee.

Mr. TSANG is also an alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing, a
non-executive director of MIE Holdings Corporation (stock code:
1555), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREERE (B)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. ZHANG Songyi, aged 57, has been appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 10 April 2008. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. ZHANG obtained
a Juris Doctor degree from Yale University in 1985. Mr. ZHANG
currently serves in senior management and advisory capacities in
several companies, including acting as the chairman of Mandra
Capital and a director of SINA Corporation which is a company
listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market. Mr. ZHANG is currently an
independent non-executive director of China Longyuan Power Group
Corporation Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was a non-executive director of China Lumena New
Materials Corp., the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange,
in the last three years.

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest, aged 62, has been appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 10 April
2008. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
TANG is a solicitor in private practice and at present a partner and a
consultant of two law firms respectively. Mr. TANG graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree of Laws and
is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Australia. He is
also a China Appointed Attesting Officer by the Ministry of Justice of
China.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREERE (B)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 64, has been appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 10 April 2008. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. YU is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in the fields of auditing,
corporate finance, financial investigation and corporate management.
He was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm and
is the Vice Chairman of MCL Partners Limited, a Hong Kong-based
financial advisory and investment firm.

Mr. YU is currently also an independent non-executive director of
TeleEye Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of
the Stock Exchange; stock code: 8051) as well as the following
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely
China Datang Corporation Renewable Power Co., Limited (stock
code: 1798), Great China Holdings Limited (stock code: 141), Haier
Electronics Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1169), Media Chinese
International Limited (which is also listed in Malaysia; Hong Kong
stock code: 685, Malaysia stock code: 5090), One Media Group
Limited (stock code: 426), Playmates Holdings Limited (stock code:
635), Sateri Holdings Limited (stock code: 1768), Synergis Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2340), VXL Capital Limited (stock code: 727) and
China Resources Gas Group Limited (stock code: 1193).

Senior Management

(Investor Relations Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy is 52 years old. He is a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. WONG has joined the
HKC Group since 2007 and is a member of the Executive Committee
for HKC. He has been instrumental in raising funds for the Group and
is serving as a Director of Investor Relations.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’s degree in the geophysical sciences
from the University of Chicago and an MBA from the Yale School
of Management. Before Yale, he worked as a petroleum geologist
at Sohio Petroleum. After Yale, he became an investment banker
at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where he was involved in project
finance. He moved to Hong Kong with Bear Stearns, and was involved
in a variety of corporate finance activities, including some of the first
H share IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity research
at Societe Generale in Shanghai, and later as head of China Research
at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before joining HKC, Mr. WONG served
as a Chief Financial Officer for DVN Holdings, where he was involved
in fund raising and introducing strategic investors to the company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

The directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure in
presenting to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) their
report together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of

Operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activity of the Group is alternative energy business. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associated companies are set out in pages
143 to 146 of the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of
the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 December 2012
by geographical and business segments is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 61 to 62.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Convertible Preference Shares
Details of movements in the share capital and convertible preference
shares of the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) and there is no
restriction against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2012,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands (as revised), amounted to HK$1,272.27 million (2011:
HK$1,346.47 million).

Five-year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 147 to 148.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other donations
(2011: Nil).

I - HEREE
R RAEBRADRZNE - BB RE
HERNRA P BREN 6 -

SRR

B AT AT A 8 ST
R ARTZBART RREE R RS
BRRA BB BN 525 -

BRI

AATR BB BRMAN(BHBRMA)) L EE
BB RIRIEZ 15X - T B2 BB A TME HHE
S RARAER RS -

23
R ARARFEEZ BEEHIERNES
BTSRRI 326 -

Al it 2 Ik 1
?ﬁﬁ”sﬁ %% A (KB EE - AR
AR-ZZE——ZF+-A=+—HAZ2aA#EHIE
1%%1%7,%1,272,270,000,%7c(:gffﬁ :
1,346,470,000/8 7T ) °

hFEMBEHBE

AEFBERAEVRFEZXEUREERAR
MEHNE147TEEF 1488 °

B

FA-AEEYEFLESREAMBR(ZF
——F E) o

TEBLRRREARDA 35
T _FEFER



Report of the Directors (continued)

EEeREE(H)

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

Dr. YUNG Pak Keung, Bruce (Managing Director)
(resigned on 18 September 2012)

Mr. WANG Sing (with Mr. TSANG Chi Kin as his alternate)

Mr. ZHANG Songyi
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest
Mr. YU Hon To, David

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”),
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie, Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel and
Mr. YU Hon To, David will retire from office by rotation in accordance
with Article 85 of the Articles of Association and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election to serve for another term.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Company considers all of them to be
independent.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Share Option Schemes
Share options of the Company:

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “CRE Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the CRE
Option Scheme are set out below:

(@)

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high calibre
Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or
“Invested Entities”), to recognise the significant contributions
of the Eligible Persons to the growth of the Group or Invested
Entities by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain
ownership interest in the Company and to further motivate
and give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the Group
or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior executive
or officer, manager, director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute to the
growth and development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the CRE Option Scheme is 69,153,475 shares which
represent 2.93% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this Annual Report.

EERBKER

B FIAF AR B EE s EFHEELAT
HEAEHBA AT I ARETAR —FRRLH
BR(S CRE B ER N FURLEZ RBAK -

BRESE

KRB 2B

ZIN/N

ARZZENFREA-TEERAREABK

T ([PEBEERRBRETE ) - FEBE
BERBRER B 2 FBHIT ¢

(a)

(b)

(c)

BHY
TEANRBERBERESZAEBRAL
(E&ER T KRR HAREE KA
TEAREARFARA SR 2 EMER
(REERMEBEBEZIANER
BERREEETAERAL  EREATR
BARRZHEEEER  BUARBEREY
AEERKEERZERMELZERE
Bl WE—TEBRERZEAERAL
BERAEESIREER I REKNYRE
BEREHER -

BERAL
EXSERENBERAELALEHALHE
FEFMREERZERNERAMEMZ
REEETEMKE R R EMREER
ZAEMAER (TREBEFRR) sRITK
ABREBAE 18  ER(BERTE
= FATESFRBUINTES) LB
o

AHBETROZESHE

RIEFE B A RERESE T EETY
AR B P 48 569,153,475 » HE
AR BAARFRFIZE B B2 B BITRA
2.93% °

FEBEERRERRAT 37
—E-FFR



Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Share Option Schemes (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

38

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i)  each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not exceed 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue and not exceed
HK$5 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must specify
the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE(H)
Share Option Schemes (continued) BRRESTE m)
() Remaining life (i) #ATEFH
CRE Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on 27 MIERIEPE B AR 2 2 &K
May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the BIRIE - BAIPEBAERERETZ
terms of the CRE Option Scheme. ZEMEBAERtTE TR N\FH
AZ=++RE® -
Movements of share options granted under the CRE Option FER - RBIEBEFEBEERERETZFED
Scheme during the year are as follows: ZHEREZ SEFENT
Number of share options
BREZA
Outstanding Outstanding
at at Exercise
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December price per
Names interest 2012  Granted Exercised  Lapsed 2012 Date of grant Exercise period share
(HKS)
R=B-=F
R=Z-=f t=A
-A-A B/ =t-H B
#E BRfE HRTE 0 ERE BARE BAX HATHE RHAH 18 L
(%)
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Personal 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0.570
Leslie (Director) ~ {AA “T-ZEAA—H 31 August 2013
RUBLE(ES) —Z-—FNA-BE
“Z-ZF\A=1-H
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0.570
ZE-SEAA-A 31 August 2014
“E2-Z£AA-R%E
“E-mENA=T—H
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0.570
ZZ-TEAA-B 31 August 2015 (Note 1)
—T-=FNA-BZE
“E-RFNA=T-H
(M)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE(H)
Share Option Schemes (continued) BRESTE @)
Number of share options
BREZA
Outstanding Outstanding
at at Exercise
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December price per
Names interest 2012  Granted Exercised  Lapsed 2012 Date of grant Exercise period share
(HKS)
R-B-z%
R-B--F +Z8
) Rl B/ =t-H B
#E BaftE HATE  BERE BT BAN HARITHE REAH ik k&
(%)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Personal 550,000 - - - 550,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0.764
Sum, Samugl BA “T-TF 19 January 2013
_(Director) -B=tH —Z——%-f-1+R%
PEREE(ES) ZE-=5-ATNhH
825,000 - - - 825,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0.764
—E-Tf 19 January 2014
—AZtH ZE-"%-A_fRE
ZE-RmE-A+hA
1,375,000 - - - 1,375,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0.764
%% 19 January 2015 (Note 1)
—A=+A ZE-=5-A-fH%
—Z-af-A1NA
(1)
Dr. YUNG Pak Keung, Personal 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0.764
Bruce (Ex-Director, fAA “ET-ZF 19 January 2013 (Note 2)
resigned on —-AZ1H “T——%-A-tHZ
18 September ZE-=5-A+NH
2012 (Btit2)
ApkEL(NES
RZE-—F 1,650,000 - - - 1,650,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0.764
NATN\BEHT) %% 19 January 2014 (Note 2)
—AZtH “E-"%-A_fRE
—Z-PE-RTAA
(H2)
2,750,000 - - - 2,750,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0.764
_Z-TF 19 January 2015
—-A-+H (Notes 1&2)
T-ZE-A_tR%
:§;£¢7H+HH
(Bi1R2)
Total £zt 13,250,000 - - - 13,250,000
Notes: 1. The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the — Mfat 1. BRERGEZTEEZEHETZXKHAAKT
attainment of the performance target as determined by the Board. % HREBRAITITE -
2. Any outstanding share options will be lapsed after six months 2. RIEFEABLBEFERES B - (T (AR
subsequent to the date of cessation of directorship pursuant to the T2 BRSO T EF R A
CRE Option Scheme. REET MBI A £ 5K3%
Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised, % FXHEBEEIN  REBEE-_ZT——F+=-A

cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2012 under = —BIFEE - e (AR A
R e SRS BB - 108 - SEHE AN -
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share options of associated corporation of the Company:
The existing share option scheme of HKC (Holdings) Limited (the
“HKC Option Scheme”) was adopted on 16 June 2006. Particulars of
the HKC Option Scheme are set out below:

(@) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber
Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract human resources
that are valuable to HKC and its subsidiaries (the “HKC Group”)
or any entity in which any member of the HKC Group holds
an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”), to
recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible Persons to
the growth of the HKC Group or Invested Entities by rewarding
them with opportunities to obtain ownership interest in HKC
and to further motivate and give incentives to these Eligible
Persons to continue to contribute to the long term success and
prosperity of the HKC Group or Invested Entities.

(b) Eligible Persons
Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior executive or
officer, manager, director (including independent non-executive
director) or consultant of any members of the HKC Group
or any Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion of the HKC
board, have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the HKC Group or any Invested Entity.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of HKC available for issue under the
HKC Option Scheme is 671,418,554 shares which represent
approximately 5.97% of the issued share capital of the HKC as
at the date of this Annual Report.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
The total number of shares of HKC issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in any 12-month period to:

(i)  each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares of
HKC in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of HKC must not exceed 0.1% of the
shares of HKC in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in
aggregate value.

BRAERE ()

RABEBCEE 2 BRE
ERER(BEBRBRATAR-ZETRFEANATR
BRMREBRENE([FEERBRES
2]) - BEERBIMEBIFBEHIIMOT

(@ EB®W
FEEMARERBREEFSZABRAL
(EERTX)  URESIUBEERSRAE
MEBAR([EAEREEDABERRE
BFE N RS A RRFA RAER 2 EMA
ER(REBER)MEBEABEZANE
R ERREHETEERALT  BES
ANSESERCEREREZ  BURE
HEHEEEREEXIRETE 2R
Bz EARER - WiE—SEB R ERZ
EEERATHBERBTAEREEIKE
BRI RERERERERELER -

(b) EEHRAL
EERREFEIRNER/ELAKE
HEBEREEREAREERZIERN
BRAMAERBMZ BB EZREEE T EMK
BRASREAREERZEMNER (THE
BEFEE)  SMITHRAEHEIEAR - K
B B (REEFRITES)RER -

(c) AHBITRAZESHE
RIEBSELEREEITRBEITZES
BRI BE 671,418,654 - HHER
EEEERAFRTIZFEAH BBHITHRA
#415.97% °

(d) BEERALAEREZLR
PER+ ZEAHE - TR LB
(Iim B EITR K W RTTER) B 2 31T i
ATHALTETZEBERBOEE

() BEABBALTEBBEBER
ERTRH1% &

iy EREFERTERRIBILIEH
TEETSHAETSEREETR
70.1% N 4B 1B 13 #8185,000,0007%
7TE o
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EEEHEE (R

Share Option Schemes (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

42

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the board of HKC
may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of HKC must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in daily quotations sheet on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

Remaining life

The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on
16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the HKC Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Movements of share options granted to the Directors under the HKC
Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

BT &8l
ER - REESRS
EEHBELOT

RERE B TEE B

Number of share options
EhREse
Exercise
price per
Outstanding at Adjustments on Adjustmentson  Outstanding at share
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 19July 24 December 31 December (Adjusted)
Name of Directors  interest 2012 Granted Exercised  Lapsed 2012 2012 2012 Date of grant Exercise period HKS)
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3)
N-%-2f i e N = S gk
-B-A Bif¥/  tATAR tZA-TMA tZA=t-A kR
£33 BEUE WRTE  CRE EAE BAN Pkt ] Pk ] WATR RUAH & (£%8)
(Rtt1) (Rtt1) (%7)
(Bst3)
Mr. O! Kang, Eric  Personal 680,625 - - - 21,01 48,061 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
Bk fAA “ERNE 14 December 2016
TZATER  ZERtETCATHAE
%~ AE+ BTmE
1,134,375 - - - 3,119 80,102 1,249,596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1,066
ZEEE 14 December 2016
TZATHA :21‘ NEt-ATRRE
_Z- A¢+ ﬂf@ﬁ
363,000 - - - 11,238 25,632 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
R\ 31 January 2018
o EENECR-RR
- N\E-A=1-A
544,500 - - - 16,807 38,449 599,806 1 February2008 1 February 20100 1.242
IR\ 31 January 2018
“F-H -3 fg A-B%
E-N\E-R=t-8
907,500 - - - 28,0% 64,081 999,676 1 February 2008 1February2011to 1.242
ZZENE 31 January 2018
“F-H _T__E A-B%
E-N\E-R=1-A
Famiy 680,625 - - - 21,071 48,061 749,757 15 Decernber 2006 15 December 2007 to 1,066
b3 EENE 14 December 2016
TZATER  ZERtETCATHAE
“E-RETZATER
1,134,375 - - - 35,119 80,102 1,249,596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1,066
e v 14 December 2016
+ZBtER ZEEN\ETCATREE
Z3-ETATRA
363,000 - - - 11,238 25,632 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
2535 31 January 2018
ZA-H EENECR-RE
E-\E-R=1-A
544,500 - - - 16,857 38,449 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 20100 1.242
R\ 31 January 2018
ZR-8 ZE-TECA-RR
- N\E-A=1-A
907,500 - - - 28,09 64,081 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 o 1.242
IR\ 31 January 2018
“A-8 “E——4#-f-B%
ZE5-\E-A=1-A
HEBERRIREERAR 43
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEeREE (@
Share Option Schemes (continued) BRESTE @)
Number of share options
EREHE
Exercise
price per
Outstanding at Adjustments on Adjustmentson  Qutstanding at share
Nature of 1 January Cancelled/ 19July 24 December 31 December (Adjusted)
Name of Directors  interest 2012 Granted Exercised  Lapsed 2012 2012 2012 Dateofgrant  Exercise period (HKS)
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3)
H-g-2f H-%-2§ RH-§-2f R-R-IF 8k
-A-8 Bif#/  tAtAR tZA-tMA tZRA=t-H i3
Bt BiEkE WATE CRE EOR B&W Pk Pk L] HATE RLAH & (&%)
(Rk1) (Hish1) (#7)
(K3t3)
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Personal 6,000,000 - - - 185,758 423,68 6,609,440 1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0.443
Leslie fAA Z5-%% 31 August 2013
Rusht AA-H “E-EAR-BR
ZE-CENA=-A
9,000,000 - - - 278,637 635,523 9,914,160 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0.443
“E-EF 31 August 2014
NA-H ZE-ZENA-AR
“5-RENAZT-H
15,000,000 - - - 464,39 1,069,205 16,523,601 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0.443
IE-EF 31 August 2015 (Note 2)
NA-H ZE-CENA-RE
Z2-RENA=T-H
(ht)
Mr. LEUNG Wing  Personal 1,452,000 - - - 44,953 102,531 1,599,484 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
Sum, Samuel A “EER 14 December 2016
DEREAE tZATRR ZEELETCATRAEE
e A
2,420,000 - - - 74,922 170,885 2,665,807 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1,066
ZZER 14 December 2016
+tZRtRR ZEE\ETATRRE
“R-RETIATEA
484,000 - - - 14,984 34,176 533,160 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
e £t 31 January 2018
—R-8 “EENECA-BE
25 \E-f=1-A
726,000 - - - 2,476 51,265 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 20100 1.242
3L\ 31 January 2018
—A-H ZE-RECA-RR
ZE-NE-A=1-A
1,210,000 - - - 37,461 86,442 1,332,903 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 1o 1.242
IR\ 31 January 2018
ZR-H “E—4-f-B%
ZE-\E-A=1-A
Total 851 43,552,000 - - - 1,346,347 3,077,359 47,975,706
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Sha

Notes:

Save

re Option Schemes (continued)

Adjustments to the numbers of HKC shares underlying the outstanding share
options of HKC were made as a result of the issues and allotments of scrip
shares of HKC.

The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the attainment of
the performance target as determined by the board of directors of HKC.

In accordance with the HKC Option Scheme, the exercise prices of the share
options of HKC were adjusted from HK$1.174 per share, HK$1.368 per
share and HK$0.488 per share to HK$1.139 per share, HK$1.327 per share
and HK$0.473 per share respectively as a result of the issue and allotment of
scrip shares by HKC on 19 July 2012.

In addition, the exercise prices of the share options of HKC were further
adjusted from HK$1.139 per share, HK$1.327 per share and HK$0.473 per
share to HK$1.066 per share, HK$1.242 per share and HK$0.443 per share
respectively as a result of the issue and allotment of scrip shares by HKC on
24 December 2012.

as disclosed above, no share option was granted to the

Directors, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed by the Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2012 under the HKC Option Scheme.

BRETE (A

Hyat

1.

R ESURBE SN
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HREBERBETREFAERYE » HHARTT
2 EBERBREMSEEZRRNWBEE
1EMH 52 o

BRERFTEZEBEEREFETET KA
B1Zi& - HREERATITIE -

HREBERRR -_E——FE+ A+ NAEFTR
IERERE  NBEZREREZTIEER
REBEEEERBREFEELHFE  HER
1174870 « &/%1.8368% 7T % £7/80.488 T -
D FIFHEZFR1.1398 T ~ /8 1.8327F 7T K&
#HR0.473F T °

WO AREBEFEEZR -_FE——F+_-H4
A TREERERE  HEEZERE
RIEZITIEEC IEHAZE - BER1.139F T +
FHR1.827 8T R EFHR0.4738 T + 7 B B HE
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEeREE(H)

Directors’ Interests in Securities

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
adopted by the Company were as follows:

EERNESFZES
RZZE——F+_A=+—8 EEERAQF
FEBITHABRARRI K ET B EE(EE
REBEHDHEEN([EHRBEE])EXVEE)
25 - ARG REFTHEE W ELERAR
BIREFE S MBI E3526 R EATHFEZ
Tt 2R AR - SREREA R B ATIRAE
R ETRAINER B EHBITAERETES
R MR LESF A (MELESFR) ) Z R EMEARAA]
MR P2 e RORB T ¢

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of
and underlying existing issued
shares of the share capital
Name of Directors Nature of interest Company of the Company
ARAFAROKR AAERFRBEBT
EEsA REmME HEROEE RABLNE D
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Corporate! 1,836,550,369 77.940
=HIEE NS
Personal? 2,175,086 0.092
& A2
Joint® 24,724,353 1.049
HE
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Personal* 5,000,000 0.212
SR BRE EAA
Joint® 570,000 0.024
s
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel Personal® 2,750,000 0.117
RERFTHE & A°
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued) EERNES 2D
() Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of () RZEAQXTARPREBEROZHFAE :

the Company: (continued) (&)
Notes: Hiat -

Since as at 31 December 2012, HKC was held as to approximately
41.59% by Claudio Holdings Limited (“Claudio”) (via its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and Genesis Capital
Group Limited (“Genesis”)), a company owned as to 50% by Mr.
OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEl
Valonia Lau, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of shares of the Company in which HKC is interested.
The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric includes (i) an interest in
1,275,540,924 shares of the Company held by HKC; (i) an interest in a
6.4% convertible note issued by the Company to HKC with a principal
amount of RMB75 million carrying rights to convert into 135,584,558
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.68 per share
(subject to adjustment); (iii) an interest in 149,358,990 shares of the
Company held by Creator; and (iv) an interest in 276,065,897 shares
of the Company held by Genesis.

The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
2,175,086 shares of the Company.

The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
24,724,353 shares of the Company jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEl
Valonia Lau.

The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an
interest in 5,000,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by the Company as detailed in “Share options of the Company”
section above.

The joint interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an interest
in 570,000 shares of the Company jointly held with his wife, Ms. WU
Tung.

The personal interest of Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel represents an
interest in 2,750,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by the Company as detailed in “Share options of the Company”

section above.

R-ZFE——#F+_HA=4+—H @BR
& & # i H Claudio Holdings Limited
([Claudio]) #F 5 #741.69% ((EEH 2 &
WERFIEIZEEEFR LA ([EB#F]) R
ERIEFEFRAA([EE])) - MClaudio
HEREEREZZTFRZEL 155
B50% + MEM L LWIREBREEER
HEREDZA—HELNARGHHEEE
25 0 BRIELZ N AR EI)EERER
FT#51,275,640,924 18 K X el fR 10 4 25 -
()RR Al BB R BETELEBARE
75,000,0007T 2 6.4/F A 128 2 15t 2
Pt 75 1 FI AT 1242 /iR (B &2 /1R 068 7T (A T
SR ) #2158 5135,584, 5688 AN 2 Al 17
(iii) Bl B 5 149,358,990 8 7K 2 AR (7 1
25 0 R(iv)EBIFT1%276,065,897 I8 K 2 &)
B ©

FW5EEZ BN ER2,175,0868 K
R AR e o

ERE LT KR IEH AR ZTFE
BL S+ HEAHE 224,724,353 R K X &)
BR17Z #a -

RUBSEEZ AN ERIFHE L[ AR
A2 FEIR1E | —BUATAEM - KD FIATIR M
BRI R 2 5,000,000/% #E BT R 17 2 1

250

KRB ET HAEmIER R AR EF
R+ H[EHH 2 570,000 2 7%
72 s o

REFRFALEZEAAERIGHELX [EAR
A2 FEIR1E | —BUATAEMt - KD FIATIR M
FERRIE S R 2 2,750,000 #E BT R 17 2 ##

5o
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ExeREE(@
Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued) EENESFZ2ER @)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of (i) RAQATHEBEEIEROREBERG 2
associated corporation of the Company: R
Approximate
Number of shares percentage of
and underlying existing issued
Name of shares of the share capital of
associated associated the associated
corporation Name of Directors Nature of interest corporation corporation
HECEE 2 RO R HAEEEERSE
HEEZEEE EBHSR EEME HEARGHE SRTRAHSANEI L
HKC Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Corporate’ 4,675,014,112 41.586
ERRER =l kA4 NCIL
Personal? 34,429,607 0.306
& A2
Joint® 121,608,844 1.082
AP
Family* 3,998,705 0.036
EN 3
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Personal® 33,047,201 0.294
Leslie fEAS
SR BE
Joint® 17,500,000 0.156
e
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Personal” 6,931,095 0.062
Samuel & A7
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
associated corporation of the Company: (continued)

Notes:

1.

The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest
in 1,691,419,708 shares of HKC held by Creator, and an interest in
2,983,594,404 shares of HKC held by Genesis. Both Creator and
Genesis are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Claudio, a company owned
as to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his
wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
30,430,902 shares of HKC and an interest in 3,998,705 underlying
shares in respect of options granted by HKC as detailed in “Share
options of associated corporation of the Company” section above.

The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
121,603,844 shares of HKC jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia
Lau.

The family interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
83,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by HKC
to Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau as detailed in “Share options of associated
corporation of the Company” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an
interest in 33,047,201 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by HKC as detailed in “Share options of associated corporation of the
Company” section above.

The joint interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an interest
in 17,500,000 shares of HKC jointly held with his wife, Ms. WU Tung.

The personal interest of Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel represents an
interest in 6,931,095 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by HKC as detailed in “Share options of associated corporation of the
Company” section above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company held any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that enabled
the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of
18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie are executive
directors of HKC and Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel is director of
certain subsidiaries of HKC. One of the business activities of the
HKC Group is alternative energy business in the PRC. Apart from
the Company’s business, HKC Group has an interest in a business
in ethanol energy business in the PRC. Having considered that
HKC’s investment in the ethanol energy business is non-core and
the business is dormant at present, the Company can operate its
business independently.

Mr. WANG Sing is a partner of TPG. TPG has an interest in Comtec
Solar Systems Group Limited (Stock Code: 712) which is engaged in
alternative energy business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective
associate(s) was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’
Interests in Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Connected
Transactions” in this Report and “Related Party Transactions” in note
33 to the consolidated financial statement, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities FTERRANHESF 2R

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than a Director R-ZT——F+=-A=+—0 » HARFREZE

or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in & B S IEHI F 336 KR T BT HFE 2 S MAT

the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded inthe 28t M TA T (BEEHARFTETETHAER

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO: SN RN Rl 2 B An Ne 4B BABR 1) 7 78 A8 R 2 Sk
A

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the RZAQATRGORHEEROZHERE
Company

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of the

and underlying existing issued

shares of the share capital

Name Nature of interest Company of the Company

HAEXRRE

AERTRG KR 2 RITRA

wE LB e HERG A BMOB DT

HKC Beneficial owner! 1,411,125,482 59.886

EERR EnEa A

Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau Family? 1,838,725,455 78.032
EE-3oem ENi

Joint® 24,724,353 1.049
RS2

Claudio Corporate* 1,836,550,369 77.940
A

Genesis Corporate® 276,065,897 11.716
B NSIE

Creator Corporate® 149,358,990 6.339
gl NCIE

Mr. David BONDERMAN Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
David BONDERMAN %t & NG

Mr. James G. COULTER Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
James G. COULTERJE 4 NS
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities
(continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

FERRRES 2B @)

REQRTARG KBBR8 (&)

Number of shares
and underlying
shares of the

Approximate
percentage of the
existing issued
share capital

Name Nature of interest Company of the Company

ERRRRE

EARRG KR 2 BITRA

HE/ LB REmE HERGEE BHAES T

Tarrant Capital Advisors, Inc. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
il

Tarrant Advisors, Inc. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
AR

TPG Ventures Professionals, LP. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
NE

TPG Ventures Partners, LP. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
AR

TPG Ventures Holdings, LLC Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
NE

TPG Star Advisors, LLC Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
Tl

TPG STAR GenPar. LP. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
NE

TPG STAR. LP. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
AR

STAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
il
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

(continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)
Notes:

1. The beneficial interest of HKC includes (i) an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares
of the Company held by HKC, and (ii) an interest in a 6.4 per cent convertible
note issued by the Company to HKC with a principal amount of RMB75
million carrying rights to convert into 135,684,558 shares of the Company at
the conversion price of HK$0.68 per share (subject to adjustment).

2. Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares
of the Company in which Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is taken to be interested (as
detailed in “Directors’ Interests in Securities” section above).

3. The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest in 24,724,353
shares of the Company jointly held with Mr. OEl Kang.

4. Claudio is beneficially interested in 41.59% of the issued share capital of HKC
(via its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis) and thus, is deemed
to be interested in the same parcel of shares and underlying shares of the
Company in which HKC is interested. In addition, as Creator and Genesis
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Claudio, and thus, Claudio is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company in which Creator and
Genesis are interested.

5. The corporate interest of Genesis includes an interest in 276,065,897 shares
of the Company.

6. The corporate interest of Creator includes an interest in 149,358,990 shares
of the Company.

7. The corporate interest includes an interest in 300,000,000 non-voting
convertible preference shares of the Company carrying rights to convert
into shares of the Company at the initial conversion rate of 1 preference
share to 1 share (subject to adjustment) (“Preference Shares”) held by STAR
Butterfly Energy, Ltd. (“STAR”); and a capital commitment right to require the
Company to issue to STAR or its affiliate up to a maximum of 260,000,000
additional Preference Shares (subject to adjustment) at a price of HK$0.75
per additional Preference Share.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2012, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are required
to record in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEeREE(H)

Connected Transactions

On 2 November 2012, the Company and HKC entered into a
subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue to HKC a convertible note in principal
amount of RMB75 million at an issue price equal to its principal
amount, raising a total of about HK$92.20 million (before expenses)
for the Company (the “CRE Convertible Note (2012)”). The CRE
Convertible Note (2012) bears interest on its outstanding principal
amount at 6.40% per annum until its maturity date falling on the third
anniversary of its issue date. The Company will redeem the CRE
Convertible Note (2012) on its maturity date at its principal amount
outstanding together with accrued and unpaid interests. The CRE
Convertible Note (2012) will be convertible into fully paid-up shares
at HK$0.68 per share of the Company (subject to adjustment). The
Company intended to apply the proceeds raised from the issue of
the CRE Convertible Note (2012) as and for financing future project
development, providing working capital of the Group and repaying the
Group’s borrowings (including the CRE Convertible Note (2009)).

HKC is a controlling shareholder and hence a connected person of
the Company, the issue of CRE Convertible Note (2012) and the issue
and allotment of new shares of the Company upon conversion of the
CRE Convertible Note (2012) constituted connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the proposed issue of CRE Convertible Note (2012) were set
out in the circular dated 23 November 2012. An ordinary resolution
for, among the others, approving the Subscription Agreement and
the issue of the CRE Convertible Notes (2012) and new shares
of the Company on conversion was passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 11 December 2012. On 18 December 2012, the
Subscription Agreement completed and the CRE Convertible Note
(2012) was issued to a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKC.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Financial Assistance and Guarantee to Affiliated
Companies

On 28 March 2012, the Company entered into the Agreement to
Guarantee with /2 & g2 @ /] 2 & % {5 A R 2 & (CECEP Wind-Power
Corporation) (“CECWP”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
execute a counter guarantee (the “Counter Guarantee”) in favour of #
B &h e iR R EE A B](China Energy Conservation and Environmental
Protection Group) (“CECEP”), the holding company of CECWP, to
counter-guarantee CECEP for 40% of all liabilities and expenses
which may be incurred by CECEP under the guarantee given by
CECEP for facilities granted to CECWP and on-lent to FH & E % 12
(H&R)E N3 EAR A T(CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Co., Ltd.)
(“Gansu”), a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise established in
the PRC with limited liability and owned as to 40% by the Group.

Details of the Agreement to Guarantee were disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 27 April 2012. The Counter Guarantee
was signed on 1 June 2012. As at 31 December 2012, the total
outstanding principal under this facility was RMB1,105 million and the
extent of the Counter Guarantee was RMB442 million.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has provided financial
assistance to, and guarantee for, affiliated companies (including
Gansu) in aggregate amount of HK$727 million, which represented
approximately 29% of the Group’s total assets value as at 31
December 2012.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Financial Assistance and Guarantee to Affiliated
Companies (continued)

In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.22 of the Listing
Rules, the pro forma combined balance sheet of the affiliated
companies and the Group’s attributable interests in the affiliated
companies based on their latest financial statements available are
presented below:

Assets BE
Liabilities BE
Net assets BEEE

Management Contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related Party
Transactions” in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the year
attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 43%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 65%

Sales

During the year, the Group had two customers only and the
percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the major customers
are as follows:

52%
48%

The largest customer
The remaining customer

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s customers noted above.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year ended
31 December 2012.

Corporate Governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 28.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code. A Code
for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been adopted in this
regard.

Retirement Benefits Schemes
Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Review of the Annual Report by Audit Committee
The audit committee of the Company comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and one non-executive Directors with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit committee has reviewed
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the
reappointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the AGM.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEHEE (R

Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the
information of the directors of the Company since the date of the 2012
Interim Report is set out below:

Mr. YU Hon To, David

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YU was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
China Resources Gas Group Limited (stock code: 1193), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, on 28 December 2012.

Mr. TSANG Chi Kin

(Alternative director to Mr. WANG Sing)

Mr. TSANG was appointed as an alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing,
a non-executive director of MIE Holdings Corporation (stock code:
1555), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, on 30 September
2012.

On behalf of the Board
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
OEIl Kang, Eric

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

_
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RENEWABLE ENERGY
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 146, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B 2B RS ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEETEBARE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income

Administrative expenses
Provision for impairment losses

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net

Fair value gain on derivative liability
Share of profits less losses of
associated companies

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued
operations

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

FEKERE
U 28

#HE AR
EF

H WA
THRER
HEREREE
REER

B
BERA

BERAK—FH
TETAREZAFEKS
FEGE 2 A Bl E M BB 18
PR BRI B 18

PSR %

RABECERBZ
AEE(BE)REF

ERIERERK

KEERIERERT
AEZEHFN,(BE)

AEE(BE)ER

HttZ2mEBA -
TN =5

FEEHMEEBA -
HBRBIR

AEEEEER) WA
e

y

2012 2011

—E——F —T——%F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FHT FHET
B 99,513 89,897
6 (79,377) (78,935)
20,136 10,962

7 1,968 3,848
6 (37,462) (65,588)
8 (133,516) (42,912)
(148,874) (93,690)

9 1,874 2,393
9 (51,174) (49,716)
9 (49,300) (47,323)
7,140 69,320

20 80,667 67,376
(110,367) (4,317)

12 15,648 12,369
(94,719) 8,052

35 100 (3,486)
(94,619) 4,566

7,734 70,148

7,734 70,148

(86,885) 74,714
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

REREBARR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

Note
B 5T
(Loss)/profit attributable to: LU PEAh (&518) % F
Equity holders of the Company RARERFRA
— Continuing operations —RECEES
- Discontinued operations —BRIEEEER
Non-controlling interests IR
Total comprehensive (loss)/income LUTEAZE(ER), WA
attributable to: PR
Equity holders of the Company ARAEZFEA
— Continuing operations — B EET
— Discontinued operations —ERIEEEES
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR
Dividends BE 15
(Loss)/earnings per share from AATEREE AEER
continuing and discontinued BRESERDRILEE
operations attributable to equity £¥B2BER(BE) EA
holders of the Company (expressed in (LA EIRBWSIR)
HK cents per share)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BERER(FR) EF 14(a)
From continuing operations REFERLEET
From discontinued operations REBRIEEEER
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share sEREE(FR) &F 14(b)
From continuing operations REFELEETR
From discontinued operations KB BRI T
62 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(82,842) 16,682
100 (3,486)
(82,742) 13,196
(11,877) (8,630)
(94,619) 4,566
(75,254) 90,218
196 (7,033)
(75,058) 83,185
(11,827) (8,471)
(86,885) 74,714
(3.51) 1.42

- (0.30)

(3.51) 1.12
(3.51) 0.63

- (0.13)

(3.51) 0.50




Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2012
RZE——F+=-A=+—8

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Construction in progress

Prepaid land lease payments
Intangible assets

Interests in associated companies

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventory

Trade and other receivables
Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of disposal group classified
as held for sale

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BE

FREBEE

M - WERRE
EETRE

B LR EROR
EREE

N /NI

FRBEERE

RBEE

FE

TR LT B 0 e L At KUK
RRHR e
ReMREFED

RAENEZREMZEE

RBEEAE

EERE

R

ROFERTE ABGERAR
K f#fe

LN

1

ROTESESE ARG

FERESR

REAE

Note
B 5T

16
17
18
19
20

22
23
24

35

25
26

y

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
931,317 984,333
69,341 47,851
14,319 18,057
6,398 144,601
1,099,031 1,098,713
2,120,406 2,293,555
6,389 7,062
141,327 113,076
1,014 1,002
238,213 338,751
386,943 459,891
12,381 4,651
399,324 464,542
2,519,730 2,758,097
26,564 26,564
1,690,567 1,765,718
1,717,131 1,792,282
3,382 15,209
1,720,513 1,807,491
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

ReEERERE

As at 31 December 2012
RZE——F+=-A=+—8

LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITER
Deferred income tax liabilities REMSRAE
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEETE
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE ST BR B B H At B 3R
Derivative liability PETHEEE
Current portion of bank borrowings SR1TE FRENERED
Convertible note IR &5
Liabilities of disposal group classified BEGECZEEAz E8E
as held for sale
Total current liabilities REBEEAE
Total liabilities EEHAE
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEEE
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABAE
OEIl Kang, Eric
=
Director
EE
64 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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2012 2011

—E-—F —T——F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FHET FHET
27 552,247 618,334
29 41,546 66,319
593,793 684,653

31 38,851 105,596
30 2,150 9,370
27 70,897 70,349
28 93,519 80,636
205,417 265,951

88 7 2
205,424 265,953

799,217 950,606

2,519,730 2,758,097

193,900 198,589

2,314,306 2,492,144

LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
REH
Director

EF



Balance Sheet

BEEREX

As at 31 December 2012
RZE——F+=-A=+—8

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liability

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Derivative liability

Other payables

Convertible note

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

OEIl Kang, Eric
=)
Director

EF

BE
FRBEE
NG IE NI 5

RBEE
Ho At & Y 3R
& W Bl 18 /2 R R IR
ReMREFED

RBEEAE

BEEHAE

R

ROTERSTHE AEG
B R f# e

LN

e

ERAE

&f&
FRBEE
EEFBRAE

FRBEERE

RBAE
ANE = PNCIE/ O]
PTHETAAR

H At & 3R

AR ERRE
RBRELE
REAE
EEkEEARE
RBEEFE

BERERABRE

Note
B 5T

21

22
21
24

25
26

29

21
30
31
28

2012

—EB—-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER TET
12,197 12,404
702 459
1,492,658 1,654,064
42,125 60,845
_____ 1,585,485 1,615,368
1,547,682 1,627,772
26,564 26,564
1,272,269 1,346,474
1,298,833 1,373,038
- 399
- 399
150,147 161,163
2,150 9,370
3,033 3,166
93,519 80,636
248,849 254,335
248,849 254,734
1,547,682 1,627,772
1,286,636 1,361,033
1,298,833 1,373,437

LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

RER
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgEx

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREREARE
Employee
share-based Non-
Share Share  Exchange compensation Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
EERH

Be  BROEE  ERGRE  RERR  BtEE  REEA A% FERRR  RRAR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEL TER TER TER TEL TEL TEL

Balance at 1 January 2011 R=%F--%-F-A

L 25,422 944 491 53,766 1631 6,261 625796 1,657,367 23,680 1,681,047
Profit/{loss) for the year KEERR/ (BR) - - - - = 13,196 1319 8,630) 4566
Other comprehensive income B 2ERA
Currency tranglation difierences B} AEEE - - 69,989 - = = 69,989 159 70,148
Total comprehensive income SEUNEE = = 69,989 = = 13,196 83,185 (8.471) 74714
Transactions with owners BREAETZRS
Employee share options benefits BB BIEREF - = = 1,574 = = 1574 = 1574
Exercise of bonus warrants EA AR EE 1142 49,014 = - = = 50,156 = 50,156

Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE--%51+Zf

=t-RAeks 26,564 993,505 123,756 3,205 6,261 638,992 1792262 15209 1,807,491
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E-—£-f-H

L %564 993505 123,755 3,205 6,261 638992 1,792,282 15,200 1,807,491
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - - - (82,742) (82,742) (11,877) (94,619)
Other comprehensive income Et2EBA
Currency tranlation difierences ~ EFBEEE - - 7,684 - - - 7,684 50 7734
Total comprehensive income e L - - 7,684 - - (82,742) (75,058) (11,827) (86,885)

Transactions with owners BEEARTZRS

Employee share aption bensfits [EERRERT - - - (93) - - 93) - (93)
Reversal of equity component of BETaRERERTS
convertible note - - - - (6,261) 6,261 - - -

Balance at 31 December 2012 W-E-—E+-A
Zt-Hz&s 26,564 993,505 131,439 3112 - 562511 1,717,131 3382 1720513
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= =B
mEHRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Mainland China taxation paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of intangible assets

Addition to land lease payments

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of construction in progress

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in restricted cash

Dividends received from associated
companies

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of bank and other loans
Proceed from issuance of bonus warrants
Repayment of convertible note

Proceeds from issuance of convertible note
Interest paid

Decrease in advance from a fellow subsidiary

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Cash and cash equivalents of disposal group
classified as held for sale

REXRB - RTRE
EX(A)/FsRE
E T Bl R i I8

REXB(R),/ P58
HER

REEBZHERE

B KA S

BEBVEE

NE T HHENK

BAME - HEREE

BAERTIE

HEDE - R RRE
PR{S70A

RIRHIRE 0

B U S R RIS

REESME/ (PR
HeFHE

MEEBHRERE
EERITEEMER
BITAMBBREEFT SR
BEEARBRRE
BITARBRRIBPAEA
ENFE

CIEES = PNCIPe -5 20

MEEBMAREFHE

RERALEEMADF
W—A—B2ReR

R SEY
ER@Ey pe

R+t=HA=+—8B2
RERBEELEEY

R+-A=+—RZ2
Be MREEFEY
RERECREMAYZ
B MREEFEY

2

|

#

Note
P 7

34

y

2012 2011
=F—=F —FT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRT THT
(38,348) 66,302
(9,720) (1,248)
(48,068) 65,054
2,058 2,488
(376) (155)

- (1,355)

(463) (11,544)
(22,803) (27,119)
1,188 30
(12) (45)
89,626 24,956
69,218 (12,744)
(70,897) (67,881)
- 50,156
(91,338) -
93,195 -
(48,488) (47,343)
- (20,125)

L. e8| 85199
(96,378) (32,883)
343,402 362,555
3,570 13,730
250,594 343,402
238,213 338,751
12,381 4,651
250,594 343,402
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

68

General information

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company” or
“CRE”) is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability. The address of the registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
principally engaged in alternative energy business. The Group
has operations mainly in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”). The ultimate
holding company is HKC (Holdings) Limited (“HKC”), a company
incorporated in Bermuda and listed in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ thousand or
HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 March 2013.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of a derivative liability, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
Annual Report 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

@

(b)

New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012 but not currently
relevant to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)  Deferred tax — recovery of underlying
assets
Severe hyperinflation and removal of

fixed dates for first-time adopters

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

Disclosures - transfers of financial
assets

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and have not
been early adopted

The following standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 or later periods,
but the Group has not early adopted them:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

BB ELERIFEIR SETA

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
BRI BRELERIFE105% REUBEmE

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

BB B RELERNFE115 Bt & 2 BE

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities
BB B RELERIFE1255 BENEMER  En

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement
EEMBREEAB16H AFEE

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Government loans

AR BWELERFE 15 BT E R

(1E&TA)

2

y

FESTHERBE @)

BN BRREBRKE

(@

(b)

AR —_FE——F—F—HELE
B EF E B R BIERA - 15
FiF B2 7K 55 [ 4 (B 2 AT AT AR S
FTERI R 2 FE (1 & Al B4 K
KXZRFIE GETEET %
EREE)

FAGHER i1
F10R(BTA) KOREEE
BAMBASED BESERR
FIRETE) SR EIRIR
EHEERH
EANBHREEN BE-Z%c
EVLACHES) BE

EBEMGER -_E——F—F—
HEI6 5 B F R AR £ - A
WA PR TG 2ER - &
AR R

THIER] -~ BRI Z BT AR R
BEETE - BARAEEZ
T—=F— A —Haz®&M®
Z & =t AR gomR H o i R
o RSB EREERR

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBE#Hz%
Bz E s BB ER

1 January 2015
—T—h¥—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=F—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=F—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR (E)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2

(continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations (b)
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BB BWEERETHR
CCHEN),
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)
BEARMBHMELERNETRR
B RS 2R 950
CCHEN,
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

BRMBEMEERIE105 -

BETBHREENE11R K
AERFE125R 2

[==]
BRI ®wE
TR

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

BB ERIE1R
(EFTA)
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)
BB GHERIFE195%
ZE——FRKERT)
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)
BB ERIE275R
ZE——FERT)
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)
B G ERIFE285%
ZE——FKERT)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

BAG ERIE325
(ERTA)
HK(FRIC) - Int 20

&% (ERyHRE2e
TE8g) —2EFE200

Annual improvements project

FEBHEIAR

FESTHERBE @)

B BEREE R E(F)

ERMER=ZFE——F—H—
H B 16 BB F B 1M R AL - A
WAL RN FTET2ER - 15

FTAR R i FE ()

Financial instruments: disclosures —
offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

PRTH: BE-— KSR EERSREE

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and
transition disclosures

BRI s R FE o9 B £ B B KRB
R

Consolidated financial statements, joint
arrangements and disclosures of interests
in other entities: transition guidance

FEMB®mE  METHIEKENEMER
2w - BEES

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Htp2HKAER 2275

Employee benefits

BERN

Separate financial statements

BTG RR

Investments in associates and joint ventures
REtE RN B REERRIZRE

Financial instruments: presentation —
offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

TRIA: 2 -HEeREERESRAE

Stripping costs in the production phase of a
surface mine

R KW 5 A I B2 RIBRAK AR

Annual improvements to 2009 — 2011 cycle

—EENFE_FT—FRAYCFENRE
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBE#Hzgz%
sz E BAEX

1 January 2013

—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2015

—T-h¥—H—H

1 January 2013

—F—=%—A—H
1 July 2012
—F—-%tA—H

1 January 2013
—ET—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%F—H—H

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2014

—E—F—H—H
1 January 2013
—F—=%—A—H

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(b)

@

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

The Group has not early adopted the new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation,
which have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January 2012. The
Group has commenced an assessment of the
related impact, except for HKFRS 10 which the
Group assessed having no significant impact to
subsidiaries’ classification upon adoption, but is not
yet in a position to state whether any substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the financial information will be
resulted.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the fair
value of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Inter-company transactions, balances and income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associated
company. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s interests in associated companies includes
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

74

()

Associated companies (continued)

The Group’s share of its associated companies’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the profit or loss, and its share of post — acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equals or exceeds its interest in the
associated company, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associated
companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associated companies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in interests in
associated companies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In the Company’s balance sheet the interests
in associated companies are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of
associated companies are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the directors of
the Company who make strategic decisions.

@

(®)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and the
Group’s presentation currency is Hong Kong dollars
to facilitate analysis of the financial information of the
Group, which is listed in Hong Kong.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR (E)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

76

()

(@)

Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associated company that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associated companies that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHHEHEE@)
(continued)
Property, plant and equipment, comprising leasehold /2 BIEEEMER

improvement, plant and machinery, motor vehicles and
furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method, to write off their
cost over their estimated useful lives or remaining useful
lives for those second-hand assets and the estimated
useful lives are as follows:
Electricity utility plants Shorter of the remaining
operation period or 20 years

Other plant and machinery 5 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease period or
5 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount
of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

78

(continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within other income in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction
of property, plant and equipment including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised as the
costs of the assets, which are classified as construction
in progress. On completion, the construction in progress
is transferred to property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation
is provided on construction in progress until such items
as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use.

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments for
leasehold land held under operating leases, which are
stated at cost and subsequently are amortised in the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
or when there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in
the profit or loss.

(a)  Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The concession right has a finite useful life and is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over its concession right period
of shorter of the remaining operation period or 20
years.

(b) Computer software

Computer software separately acquired is shown
at historical cost. Computer software acquired in
a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
computer software over its estimated useful live of
2-5 years.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 IFESHEE#ME @)

(continued)

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

Disposal groups are classified as assets held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through
a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that
either has been disposed of, or that is classified as held for
sale, and (a) represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations; and (b) is a part of a
single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations; or (c) is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontinued operations are carried at the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Any gain or
loss from disposal of a business, together with the results
of these operations until the date of disposal, is reported
separately as discontinued operations. The financial
information of discontinued operations is excluded from
the respective captions in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes for all years presented.
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80

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivable. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 IFESHEE#ME @)
(continued)
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of [BATEEEERIIGEZEME

the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” EIBINAFTEZIMEEANR
category are presented in the consolidated statement B REAHBEGEEZEBAR

of comprehensive income within other income, in the RIVEEMUA - IR TFEEER
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value at each balance sheet date.
The change in the fair value is recognised in the profit or
loss.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

82

(continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against other expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to other income in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 IFESHEE#ME @)

(continued)

Convertible preference shares are classified as equity
that can be converted to share capital at the option of
the holder. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Convertible
preference shares are recognised initially at the fair value.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associated companies operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

84

(continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associated
companies, except for deferred tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or difference taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible notes that can be converted to share
capital at the option of the holder, and the number of
shares to be issued does not vary with changes in their fair
value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument
is recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability
that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is recognised initially at the difference between
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any
directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 IFES:BEER#ME @)

(continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of
a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition except on
conversion or expiry.

When the note is converted, the relevant equity
component and the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred
to share capital and share premium for shares issued.
When the note is redeemed, the relevant equity portion is
transferred to retained profits.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

86

(continued)

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

(a) Employee leaves entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee pension
schemes established by municipal government in the
PRC for the eligible employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively.

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions to the
MPF comply with the related statutory requirements.
The Group has no further payments obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF are expensed as incurred
and are not reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave MPF prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available. The asset of MPF is held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee pension
schemes in the PRC is at a percentage in compliance
with the requirements of respective municipal
governments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits when it
is demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the
employment of current employees without possibility
of withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present
value.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

88

(@)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan in which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions which are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period) and including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save). At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable
based on the non-market vesting performance
and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 IFESHEE#ME @)

(continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the provision of services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of business tax within the Group and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating
to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

90

(0

(ii

(i)

Revenue from alternative energy is recognised based
on power dispatch during commercial operation.
Commercial operation starts when obtaining a
Power Purchase Agreement, safety certificate
from the State Electricity Regulatory Commission
(“SERC") or Provincial Grid Authority, and 240 hours
commissioning.

Revenue from provision for software development
service is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Revenue from Clean Development Mechanism
(“CDM”) is recognised when the counterparty has
committed to purchase the carbon credits, the sales
prices have been agreed, relevant electricity has
been generated and transmitted, and it is probable
that the carbon credits will be entitled.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 IFESHEE#ME @)
(continued)
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises ﬁ@i’% EREABEEZEHMA

from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the shareholders or the directors of the
Company, where applicable.

3 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, price risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables, derivative liability, bank borrowings and
convertible note. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes. The only derivative
the Group entered is related to an equity transaction with
STAR Butterfly Energy Ltd. (“STAR”) as disclosed in Note
25(d).

The Board of Directors focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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Financial risk management (continued)

@

(b)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transaction and
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

The Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
of the Group monitors the foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2012, if US dollars and Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against Renminbi respectively, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss before income
tax would have been HK$7,337,000 lower/higher
respectively (2011: HK$11,974,000 lower/higher).

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in relation to
the subscription right of convertible preference
shares granted to STAR. As at 31 December
2012, if the share price of the Company increased/
decreased by 5%, the Group’s loss before tax would
have increased/decreased by HK$400,000 and
HK$360,000 respectively (2011: HK$1,130,000 and
HK$1,100,000).
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Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

(@)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk due
to fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate.
The Group’s results and operating cash flows are
dependent on changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2012, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased 100 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s loss before
income tax would have increased/decreased by
HK$6,231,000 (2011: HK$6,887,000).

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

The carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other receivables
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated with restricted
cash and cash and cash equivalents, most of the
deposits are placed with certain state-owned banks
in the PRC which are high-credit-quality financial
institutions and banks with high credit rankings in
Hong Kong.
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94

Financial risk management (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

To manage the credit risk associated with trade and
other receivables, the Group adopts risk control
measures to assess the credit quality, to determine
credit limits and approve credit of customers,
taking into account their financial position and past
experience. The Group has monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

The Group is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk in terms of electricity sales as the
Group’s sales of electricity were made to state-
owned provincial power grid companies. The Group
normally does not require collateral from trade
debtors. It normally grants credit terms of 30 days to
these power grid companies. However, part of the
trade receivables due from the power grid companies
relate to government subsidy which are subject to
the government allocation of the tariff surcharge
for renewable energy. Based on past experience
and industry practice, these tariff premiums are
generally paid in 6 to 12 months from the date
of the sales recognition. Ageing analysis of the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 22.
Management makes periodic collective assessment
as well as individual assessment of the recoverability
of trade and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and whether
there are any disputes with the relevant debtors.
The Group’s historical experience in collection of
trade and other receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.
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Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its current obligations when they fall due. The
Group measures and monitors its liquidity through
the maintenance of prudent ratios regarding the
liquidity structure of the overall assets, liabilities,
loans and commitments of the Group. The Group
also maintains a conservative level of liquid assets to
ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet
any unexpected and material cash requirements in
the course of ordinary business.

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities at the balance sheet date. The table has
been drawn up with reference to the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group is required to pay. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

3

Less than
1 year
—FR

HK$’000
THT

Group rEE
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——%F
+=-A=+—-H

Bank borrowings RITIEK 75,711

Trade and other payables ENERIRE

it B3R 38,851
Convertible note TRBEEE 93,519
Financial guarantee B ER 727,160

y

MEEMREE®)

(e) HEEZER
RBESRBRANEBRE
%%{ﬁu%hﬁﬁ EZH

cAEBEEBERR

ﬁém%<a%¥ EE- 8
B BREEE) CHEEEE
LR HERERERHES
BES o BEoh - AEBIMER R
FEENRRKT - UREERA
HERHESRE  CTAERMA
BEKBRP M RETERK
BANBESEE -

TRANAEENEEH SR
BEZEHNIHA -  TRE2ZE

TREBEIRBRBESRER
$E. AEBREBNEZRT
HEAMMAmE - BRBLIREE
RN BR+TZEARNEE 4
RSN EREE -

Between Between
1and2 2and5 Over
years years 5 years Total
—EMF Z—EIF AFUEL #ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

75,711 227,134 286,907 665,463

- - - 38,851
- - - 93,519
- - - 727,160

At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+=—A=+—H

Bank borrowings RITER 75,133

Trade and other payables FEfTBR IR

Ko Bt FE AT 3R 105,596
Convertible note R RE 88,055
Financial guarantee B ER 195,947

75,133 225,399 359,848 735,513

= = - 105,596
= = = 83,065
= = - 195,947
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMERRERE@
(e)  Liquidity risk (continued) (e) FEEBELEGE(E)
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
—FER —-ZEWE ZEZHFE HEUE HEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Company b NN
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+_HA
=+—H

Amounts due to subsidiaries [EfTKIBARZIA 150,147 - - - 150,147
Other payables Hib R 3,033 - - - 3,033
Convertible note QEYES: 93,519 - - - 93519
Financial guarantee BT HELR 559,247 - - - 559,247

At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+=A

=+—H

Amounts due to subsidiaries EfHIBARHKE 161,163 - - - 161,163
Other payables HAbER R 3,166 - - - 3,166
Convertible note RRER 83,055 = = - 83,055
Financial guarantee R ER 20,636 - - - 20,636

96

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital by reviewing the capital
structure. The capital structure of the Group consists
of debt and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.
The Group considers the cost and the risk associates
with the capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or conduct shares
buy-back.

The Group maintains its gearing ratio within the reasonable
range according to the Group’s strategy.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3

The gearing ratios as 31 December 2012 and 2011 were

as follows:

Current borrowings mENE R

Non-current borrowings IEmE B 3K

Total borrowings B4R

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRBESEEMI
and restricted cash K2R3 &

Net debt position BRFEEMMN

Total equity HEmAATa

Gearing ratio BEABGEH X

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

= Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

y

B R b E I ()

RZBE-——FR_ZF——F+_H
E+—HZEREBHEMT :

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E-——fF —E=——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
164,416 150,985
552,247 618,334
716,663 769,319
(239,227) (839,753)
477,436 429,566
1,720,513 1,807,491
27.7% 23.8%

RIS A AT U512
SBIBLFHN - FARIR
o :

_ FEEESE BN ER
52 BIE(RERR)
(E—) -

- FE—RPTRAREAIN 8
ABE BEXAEEZ
B (AMER) R (B
REER)BEMEEE
(B=®) -

= WIEERTIGBRE
BrEERABEHAR
B (RISEE R g A 2%)
(B=4) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BTISIRER MY & (4E)
3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMERRERE@
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREIWRZ=ZZT—ZF+=A
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December =t+—BFREEEQATFEFECE
2012. EREE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& -~} £ et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$’000
FHExT FHET FHExT THxT
Derivative liability TTETABE - 2,150 - 2,150
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREWRZ-_ZE——F+=A
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December =T —AFREERATEFEZE
2011. ENAE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF— E_% FE=H BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT FHIT
Derivative liability PTETEARE = 9,370 - 9,370
The fair value of financial instruments that are not in WHRERMSEEZEMIAZ
an active market is determined by using valuation ANFEAGERMNAE - ZEMHE
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the B mO A AR S ZABREmS
use of observable market data where it is available and B HMBEREKBLARZEF
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all BEhFTEHE - ERATFEFEZ
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are TEZFAEEABBESAIHERER
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. B AZEIAESWHINEE R -
98 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

- The fair value of the derivative liability is determined
using the Binomial model.

The carrying values of restricted cash, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

The Group tests whether property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, prepaid land lease payments and
interests in associated companies engaged in the
alternative energy businesses (“Alternative Energy
Projects”) have suffered any impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable in accordance with
the accounting policy in Note 2.9. The Group reviews
certain indicators of potential impairment such as actual
electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity, market unit price
of Certified Emission Reduction (“CER”) and other general
market conditions.

3

y
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4 Critical accounting estimates and

100

judgements (continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, the need for
recognising an impairment loss is assessed by comparing
the carrying amount of the assets, to the higher of (i) the
fair value less cost to sell, and (ii) the value-in-use on a
project-by-project basis. The fair value is either determined
by referring to recent transactions or by independent
valuers whenever appropriate. The value-in-use of the
assets represents estimated future cash flows from the
continuous use of the assets, and requires complex
assumptions and estimates such as future electricity
dispatched, tariff of electricity and CER and discount rates.
The discount rates used to discount the estimated future
cash flows are based on the relevant industry sector risk
premium and the gearing ratio.

Due to continuous and significant decline of market unit
price for CER, the Group has performed impairment
assessment on the Alternative Energy Projects. The value-
in-use calculation was based on the key assumptions,
including i) tariff increment at approximately 3% per
annum based on management’s expectation on market
development and general inflation, ii) improvement in
volume of electricity dispatched based on the operational
feasibility reports and historical performances, and iii)
assuming the contributions from CER is of negligible
amount. The post-tax discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections are between 9.5% and 10.1% per annum.

Based on the assessment, an impairment charge of
HK$133,516,000 relating to the subsidiaries operating
wind farms in Siziwang Qi, Mudanjiang & Muling has been
recognised and no provision for impairment has been
made for the Group’s interests in associated companies.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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4 Critical accounting estimates and 4 BAEBTHERHNE @

judgements (continued)

With all other variables held constant, if there is 2% tariff
increment throughout the operating period, the provision
for impairment would increase, resulting in an increase in
loss before taxation by HK$89,098,000. Similarly, with all
other variables held constant, if the volume of electricity
dispatched is 10% less than management expectation,
the provision for impairment would increase, resulting an
increase in loss before taxation by HK$230,261,000.

Management of the Company and its subsidiaries
determine the estimated useful lives, residual value and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on projected wear and
tear incurred during power generation. This could change
significantly as a result of technical renovations on power
generators. Management will adjust the estimated useful
lives where useful lives vary with previously estimated
useful lives. It is reasonably possible, based on existing
knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial year
that are different from current assumptions could require
material adjustments to the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment.

The initial accounting on the acquisition of subsidiaries
involves identifying and determining the fair values to
be assigned to the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired entities. The fair
values of investments in associated companies, property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and
concession right are determined by reference to market
prices or by using financial models. Any changes in the
assumptions used and estimates made in determining the
fair values, and management’s ability to measure reliably
the contingent liabilities of the acquired entity will impact
the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities.

EMBHEMEBERIEZZBR
T MR EEFEHANEELMN2%
BEBEESEMN  ABRKATEIR
#£4189,098,000/8 7T » Rkt - #£
FTEEMBHERTEZ2ERT
W EEREEERHL10% © &
EREB SN - A A
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4 Critical accounting estimates and

102

judgements (continued)

The fair value of derivative recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets. It is determined
using option pricing model. The inputs to these models,
including dividend vyield, risk-free rate, share price’s
volatility, are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible. A degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax and deferred
tax provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of receivables and management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer.

CDM income is determined by the electricity volume
generated, emission reduction factors and unit price of
CER. The volumes of electricity transmitted to the grid
companies are subject to the verification and certification
by an agent appointed by the buyer. The final settlement
of CDM income will only occur after verification and
certification by an agent. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in estimating the expected volumes
of CER certification and the probability that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity.
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Segment information

The CODM has been identified as the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”). The Directors review the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance, allocate resources
and make strategic decisions by business segment. Subsequent
to the discontinuance of the software development segment
as disclosed in Note 35, the Group has one single operating
segment, namely alternative energy. Although the alternative
energy segment consists of different locations of power plants
in PRC, the CODM considers that these underlying power plants
are subject to similar risks and returns. Therefore, it has only
relied on the reported revenue associated from these underlying
power plants in making financial decisions and allocating
resources.

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the generation of
electricity.

The Directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on a measure of segment results and share of profits
less losses of associated companies. This measurement basis
excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the
operating segments, such as provision for impairment losses.
Fair value gain on derivative liability and other corporate
expenses are also not included in the segment results as they
mainly represent the income and expenses arising from the
holding companies. Other information provided to the Directors
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
financial statements.

Total segment assets exclude corporate assets which are
centrally managed. Corporate assets mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, other receivables and prepayments held by
the head office.
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 aoFER @)
The segment information provided to the Directors for the REBEEZZE—Z—ZFR=ZF——F+=A8
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2012 = t+—BLEFE RESREESETER
and 2011 are as follows: DE D EERET -
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——F
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations  operations operations  operations
& B4 R BRI
Total Total
Alternative  Software reportable  Alternative Software  reportable
energy development  segments energy development  segments
DS QS
BRER  BA4RZ oFed ERER EMEZ o
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER THT TAT TAT
Revenue E: 99,513 - 99,513 89,897 792 90,689
Segment results PREE 4,410 (42) 4,368 (19,048) (3,639) (22,687)
Provision for impairment losses ~ JFi{EE B & (133,516) - (133,516) (42,912) = (42,912)
Share of profits less losses of ~ JE(LEEE 1\ RIEFRE
associated companies 80,667 - 80,667 67,376 - 67,376
Finance income FBRA 837 142 979 183 153 336
Finance costs BERK (48,520) - (48,520) (47,367) = (47,367)
(Loss)/profit before income tax  Fr& A1 (E518) /%F (96,122) 100 (96,022) (41,768) (3,486) (45,254)
Income tax credit FEhiEe 15,248 - 15,248 11,981 - 11,981
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER),/ B (80,874) 100 (80,774) (29,787) (3,486) (33,273)
Depreciation & 60,446 - 60,446 57,647 - 57,647
Amortisation B 9,885 - 9,885 12,294 = 12,294
Provision for impairment losses  [REEE&E 133,516 - 133516 42,912 = 42,912
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 aoFER @)
The segment assets as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as RZE——FRk_F——F+=ZA=+—
follows: AZHEPEENT
2012 2011
—E-c& —2——F
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations  operations operations  operations
& B&LE i BEIE
BELK  KEER Rexn  KEEHB
Total Total
Alternative  Software reportable  Alternative Software  reportable
energy development  segments energy development  segments
S 2R
ERER  BARE 2Fed ERER REREE HEes
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FER FER TAT TAT TAT
Total segment assets FHEERE 2,464,016 12,381 2,476,397 2,689,914 4651 2,694,565
Total segment assets include: ﬁ*ﬁﬁE%{E@ﬁ '
- Interests in associated N =UNCIPA: £
companies 1,099,031 - 1,099,031 1,098,713 - 1,098,713
- Additions to non-current -REFRBEE
assets 21,717 - 21,7117 40,031 - 40,031

A reconciliation of loss for the year of total reportable segments
to (loss)/profit for the year of the Group is provided as follows:

Loss for the year of total reportable

segments
Unallocated amounts:

— Fair value gain on derivative liability

— Other corporate expenses, net

(Loss)/profit for the year

Al 2D EBFT 2 A FE
E5i8
RAOBEEEE :
—PTETRABEZA
Wz
—HEmERATFRE

i

AEE(BE),EH

2RO BEN 2 ANFEEEHRBENREBAR
EE (BB, CEFEERDT

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FH&T

(80,774) (33,273)

7,140 69,320

(20,985) (31,481)

(94,619) 4,566
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Segment information (continued) 5
Reportable segment assets are reconciled to total assets as
follows:

Total segment assets DEEERE
Corporate assets EEE
— cash and cash equivalents —HEeRREFEY
— others —HAth
Total assets BEBE

The total non-current assets by geographical location are
detailed below:

Hong Kong B
The PRC =5}
Total non-current assets EMBEERE

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
revenue for reportable segments from external customers of
HK$99,513,000 is only attributable to the China market.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s
revenue for reportable segments from external customers of
HK$89,897,000 and HK$792,000 were attributable to the China
and Japan markets respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has two
customers with revenue exceeding 10% of the Group’s total
revenue. Revenues from these customers amounting to
HK$99,513,000 (2011: HK$89,897,000)are solely attributable to
alternative energy business.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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o EBE F )

2D HEEREELEHRNAT :

2012 2011
—g-=—f —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FhT
2,476,397 2,694,565
42,396 62,789
937 743
2,519,730 2,758,097

@SN ZIFRBEEREFIIWT

2012 2011
—B-C-F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET

185 211
2,120,221 2,293,344
2,120,406 2,293,555

HE-_T——F+-_A=1+—HIEFE "

REERBEINR

EFZzA2

By #B U &R

99,513,000/ LR H BT ©

HEZ

Po—FT-ASt-ALEE
ARBRENREFLAL

R 7 2B U 2=

89,897,00078 ﬁ&mz,ooo;‘%& A RIZRE

hE R EARTS -

BE_T——_F+t_-_A=1T—HL#F
B AEBEMEEP MiEREES

REBBWRZ10% - KE WS

BEPZ

I % 499,513,000 50 (= F — — 4

89,897,000/ 7T )
f% °

AR B R

GES



Expenses by nature

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments (Note 18)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 19)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16)

Net exchange losses

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Note 11)

Operating lease rental

Research and development expenditure

Repair and maintenance expenses

Corporate expenses

Legal and professional fees

Management service fee

Other expenses

Total cost of sales and administrative
expenses

Other income

Clean Development Mechanism income
Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Others

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

y

6 BRUHEIISZHX
2012 2011
—E-C—F —F—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
ZE BB & 2,020 2,170
FEA L b T & SR IE S
(B¥zE18) 1,132 1,062
| AR (MFE19) 8,825 11,289
ME - W RREITE
(KzE16) 60,457 57,647
i X B 18 5 5E 641 6,030
EERAFAZ (BIEES
B <) (BFeE11) 19,333 25,366
wERERS 2,331 2,966
M EFAEER - 12,190
IS RIRERZ 3,191 5,344
M 1,404 2,023
FERBEEER 2,907 3,860
EIRRGE 1,414 2,190
Hik 13,184 12,386
HEKRARITHE AR
116,839 144,523
7 HflgA
2012 2011
—E--F —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
%%ﬁéﬁ%%wﬁ)\ 1,102 3,848
HEWE - W REHEE KR
807 =
=) 59 =
1,968 3,848
PEBEERREERAT 107
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

108

Provision for impairment losses 8

Provision for impairment losses on
— concession right
— prepaid land lease payments

Finance income and costs

Finance costs:
— interest expense on convertible note
wholly repayable within 5 years
— interest expenses on bank borrowings
not wholly repayable within 5 years

Finance costs

Finance income:
— interest income on bank deposits

Finance costs — net

THIRIE 2 REREEREE

it
— B LA ERE
9

RRARA -

—AROhFEAEEEL
R REZ M B FRX

—BARAFAZEEEZ

RITERZHBFHX

BEMKA

BATEUA
—|RITERFBUA

BB A —FER

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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WEBERE

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
130,783 42,912
2,733 =
133,516 42,912

B AW A R m & R AR
2012 2011
—EB-——F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(2,654) (2,349)
(48,520) (47,367)
(51,174) (49,716)
1,874 2,393
(49,300) (47,323)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

10 Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration

10 EEREREEEHH

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31
December 2012 is set out below:

Name of Director

OEl Kang, Eric

CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie
YUNG Pak Keung, Bruce!"
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
WANG Sing

ZHANG Songyi

TANG Siu Kui, Ernest

YU Hon To, David

ESfg

MER

y

EEENEBE-_E——F+=A

=t—BLEFENFMMT

Employer’s

Salary & contribution

other Discretionary Share-based  to pension
Fees benefits bonuses compensation scheme Total

¥eR FUSHE
we  HEEN  BRERL ROBE 2BEIHN by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAn TAn TAn TAn TER
75 1,073 - - 14 1,162
75 1,073 - 382 14 1,544
54 1,804 - 14 9 1,881
75 1,146 93 180 14 1,508
75 - - - - 75
150 - - - - 150
150 - - - - 150
150 - - - - 150
804 5,096 93 576 51 6,620

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31
December 2011 is set out below:

Name of Director

OEl Kang, Eric

CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie
YUNG Pak Keung, Bruce'”
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
Tanguy Vincent SERRA®
WANG Sing®

ZHANG Songyi

TANG Siu Kui, Ernest

YU Hon To, David

ESh4

Tanguy Vincent SERRA®
Fio
REZ
Bk
aER

BEEERBE_ZT——F+_H

=t HIEFEZHBIT

Employer’s
Salary & contribution
other Discretionary Share-based  to pension
Fees benefits bonuses compensation scheme Total
ek BREsHE
fe  HiEN  BEEL RihmE zEZHR b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT TAT TAT TAT
75 1,160 180 - 12 1,427
75 1,160 180 603 12 2,030
75 2,669 416 647 12 3,819
75 1,202 187 324 12 1,800
32 - - - - 32
43 - - - - 43
150 - - - - 150
150 - - - - 150
150 - - - - 150
825 6,191 963 1,574 43 9,601
TEBLRRRERRAT 109
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

10 Directors’ and senior management’s

110

remuneration (continued)

Notes:

(1) Resigned on 18 September 2012
2) Resigned on 8 June 2011

3) Appointed on 8 June 2011

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four directors (2011: four)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2011: one) individual during the year are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement scheme contributions

e M EAER
RIAET IR

The emoluments payable to the one (2011: one)
senior management during the year fell in the band
of HK$500,000-HK$1,000,000 (2011: HK$500,000-
HK$1,000,000).

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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10 EENRESREBEEFFMHN @)

Bt -

(1) R-ZFE——FNA+/ AT
2 R=ZF——FNANAEF
B RZFE——FNANAEZT

FR AEERERSFATEE
ME(ZE——F - MZ)EE -
E2HMEER EXZF NP R
B FARNHBT —B(ZZTE——
F—Z)ERALTZMESHT ¢

2012 2011
—2-=f —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T
703 824

14 -

717 824

FR A—B(ZBE——F: —F)
BREERE 2 B< B 500,000
#IL%1,000,000/80( —F——4F ¢
500,000/ 7T E=1,000,000/8 7T ) 2 %
FHEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

y

11 Employee benefit expenses 11 EETEAEX

2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - e REMET 18,056 21,896
Share-based compensation, net VARR 1 1ESR BN (CF 58 ) (93) 1,574
(Write back of)/provision for unused KEAFRZ (BE), BE
annual leave (282) 224
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  B{R & A — E B 2zt 2]
(Note a) (FffzEa) 1,652 1,672
Charged to statement of comprehensive  fE2 W AR B
income (Note 6) (Fft3Ee) 19,333 25,366
Notes: Mfat -
(a)  The Group’s contribution to the employee pension scheme in the PRC (a) AEEFFEESRIKL A EIEL 2 H5L

THILFERBRE T T AE Z B 0 FAEM © &
LB IR IEEE E 1 RN E2 5 &P

is at a percentage in compliance with the requirements of respective
municipal governments. The Group also participates in the MPF

12

(b)

scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Contributions totaling HK$26,000 (2011: HK$27,000) were payable
under the MPF scheme at 31 December 2012.

Income tax credit

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profit for the year (2011: Nil). Taxation
on PRC profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at 25%, which is the rate of taxation prevailing
in the PRC.

Withholding tax on dividends
Deferred income tax credit (Note 29)

Income tax credit

ﬁ%ﬁ% B Z A

PSR

12

FEIEFTIS T (F17E29)

REBEBIRVIEEZ [ESICHAEREDH
2 o BEIEEHBUEAANEHE T
BEHSRIKE - IRIF#TESE  EE
RAIES B IZEEIE S IHIA B.2 5%t
BIIEHI - EFAZHBAAE LR
25,0008 7T ° 5T &I 1EH 2 5 B1A5 53
RIESFE -

b) RZF——FF+-A=+—H RE%E
AT EIZA T Z 12 7k E #£26,000% T
(_f*ff:ﬁ 27,000/87T) °

8B &
HARAAEEF RN EERFER - B
ERESFEHELBEE(Z—F .
) o PEFTER TYIRBEF NG ERFDE
F - P BEAT E25%:TE -

2012 2011
—EB-——F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THER FHET
(9,720) (1,305)
25,368 13,674
15,648 12,369
PEBLRRREERAR 111
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR (E)

12

13

112

Income tax credit (continued)
Note:

The share of income tax credit of associated companies of HK$16,381,000
(2011: income tax expense HK$15,803,000) is included in the Group’s share
of profits less losses of associated companies.

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax from continuing
operations differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the
consolidated entities as follows:

12

rEBIKR ®)

Kt

FEL B & A R]2 2B 18 % 416,381,000/ 7T
(ZF——1F : fr## % 1415,803,000%T)
T35 A EE B2 FE(G I & 2 Bl F g 78 o

AEBRBFELEXB 2B HRATER
ZHIE - BERAA G RENER 2 g
FIEMERGFEAG 2 IBRVIAZ RN

2012 2011
—E-C—F —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss before income tax FriS iR EE (110,367) (4,317)
Less: Share of profits less losses of R BEAR R R X R AR
associated companies B8 (80,667) (67,376)
Less: Fair value gain on derivative liability & : fTATABBEZ A FEKS (7,140) (69,320)
(198,174) (141,013)
Tax calculated at the domestic rates RBEBBER 2% T AriEA A
applicable to profits in the respective BERE 2R
countries 43,592 27,650
Expenses not deductible for taxation AR 2 B X
purpose (3,985) (8,654)
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA 677 476
Tax losses not recognised KRR TIAE 1A (3,153) (1,957)
Deferred tax on undistributed profits Rk N 2 FEER I8
and fair value difference AV EER (11,763) (3,841)
Withholding tax on dividends BEREZ BN (9,720) (1,305)
Income tax credit PSR 15,648 12,369

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22.0% (2011:
19.6%).

J.I1.C. (Macao Commercial Offshore) Company Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company in 2011, was exempted
from Macao complementary tax in accordance with the Macao
Decree Law No. 58/99/M.

Loss/profit attributable to equity holders of
the company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$75,718,000 (2011: profit of HK$47,218,000).

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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INHEFERARE A22.0%(—T——4F ¢
19.6%) °

RIERFIAS F58/99/ M5 - RARIARZ
T——F72EMBARERCRFEER
¥R BR A G ERREARPIFTS /T
o

RN EEEFE AEMN
B8R
RARBMBRRBEZARAERERF
A AEIEEET75,718,0008 T ( — T ——
£ 1 345 F)47,218,0005 7T ) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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14 (Loss)/earnings per share 14

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

(Loss)/profit from continuing
operations attributable to
equity holders of the Company
(HK$ thousand)

Profit/(loss) from discontinued
operations attributable to
equity holders of the Company
(HK$ thousand)

(:F/;FETE)

IHE R 75 F)
(') (F371)

AR B RA ARG
(E18) s (T&T)

(Loss)/profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company
(HK$ thousand)

B#EITER
(R0

B T8

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (thousand)

FREKX (BR) /&%

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

(HK cents per share) (FRBL)
From continuing operations RERFEL ST
From discontinued operations REBRIEEEER

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. In 2011, the convertible preference shares
are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares.
For the bonus warrants, a calculation is made in order
to determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average market
share price of the Company’s shares during the year)
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding bonus warrants. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number
of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the bonus warrants.

y

SR(EE) B

BREA(BE) BAMNDIEARF
Rz=FE ARG (EBR) /% FIRR A
FABRBTEBBRINEFHEEE

$ RSB E ARG RER
BrrexBe (BB 87

ARrEsERAARGRAD K

2012 2011
== —T——fF
(82,842) 16,682
100 (3,486)
(82,742) 13,196
2,356,372 1,177,046
(3.51) 1.42

- (0.30)

(3.51) 1.12

Fh#E(ER) BANERRABRRE Y
BENETFHGEE - FRABARBRMAE
RAEBEBEY R ERROE LG - RN
T——4 T?ﬁﬁx%ﬁ‘ﬁﬂx%&fﬁ ﬁZ%ERT@
SEBR - BLALARBEEMS - EER
R R AT AL FI) 2

B R FerTEb@%%Zi‘?M
EBE AEEERATE(EERLARF

AR P E) AT B2 IRDBE - B L
MEFEFRS 2B BB & RBERRANZ
PRiEEETEmED T 2RO EE B
L8 -

FEBLAERREERLT
—E-_FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e KmRM (&)
14 (Loss)/earnings per share (continued) 14 8R(BR) B @
2012 2011
—F-=F =T %
(Loss)/profit from continuing KRR ARG RER
operations attributable to BrREER, (BER) &F
equity holders of the Company (F#&m)
(HK$ thousand) (82,842) 16,682
Profit/(loss) from discontinued RARERFAABGRED R
operations attributable to IHEEER 7 %H,/ (BE)
equity holders of the Company (FET)
(HK$ thousand) 100 (3,486)
(82,742) 13,196
Weighted average number of BT MR N T
ordinary shares in issue (thousand) (F1%) 2,356,372 1,177,046
Adjustment for: RATHIEFE :
— Assumed conversion of — R AR AT AR B S AR i
convertible preference shares (FH&)
(thousand) - 1,434,701
— Incremental shares issued for no —EERBINEITIRG R
consideration: Warrants 748 B7481%795 (FhR)
and 795 (thousand) - 12,693
Weighted average number of ordinary FR st E & E#ERF 2 TRk
shares for diluted earnings per mEFHE (FK&)
share (thousand) 2,356,372 2,624,440
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share Sh#EE (BR) &BF
(HK cents per share) (FRB)
From continuing operations REFELEER (3.51) 0.63
From discontinued operations KB BRI T - (0.13)
(3.51) 0.50

114 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

14 (Loss)/earnings per share (continued)

(b)

Diluted (continued)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 did not assume the exercise of the share
options, convertible note, convertible preference shares
and the subscription rights for convertible preference
shares outstanding during the year since the exercise
would have an anti-dilutive effect.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2011 did not assume the exercise of the share
options, convertible note and the subscription rights for
convertible preference shares outstanding during the year
since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect.

15 Dividends

No dividend was proposed and paid for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: Nil).

14 SR(BE) B

(b)

#EE)
HE-_Z——F+=-—A=+—HL
FEZEREE(BIE) /BRI E
RERF R M ARITE 2 B - AT
ARZ & - AT AR S AR R T R AR B
LR REBEETE  REREH
TEBEERBIFE -

BE-_T——F+-A=+—H1L
FEZEBREE(ER) /BT E
R AR A I R AT 6 2 RE AR - AT
R R R AT R AR SR AR 2 RE AR
T RERARITEREERE

=5 B/ ap
SERE o

15 KRE
BE_E——F#+-_A=+—HItFE "
VEEZTERNEANRE(ZE——F

&)

FEIBERRREGRLT
—E-_FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR (E)

16 Property, plant and equipment

Group

At 1 January 2011

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2011

Opening net book amount
Currency translation differences
Additions
Transfer from construction

in progress (Note 17)
Disposal
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2011

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2012

Opening net book amount
Currency translation differences
Additions

Disposal

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2012

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net book amount

116
Annual Report 2012

16 % - #HBERRE

Electricity Furniture,
Leasehold utility plant  fixtures and Motor
improvement  and others  equipment vehicles Total
HENE ER  BR#EB
5@ #i REf e RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THEL TEL TEL TEL TET
R-Z2--F-A-H
A 3,474 515,591 1,272 1,113 521,450
ZEMERRE
(1,445) (9,984) (623) (331) (12,389)
FEFE 2,029 505,607 649 782 509,067
BE-E-—-&
+ZA=+-ALEE
FEMRAFE 2,029 505,607 649 782 509,067
ERugzs 86 31,598 26 44 31,754
AE - 10,466 205 873 11,544
BREERTIR (MF17)
= 489,645 = = 489,645
HE - - (12) (18) (30)
il (734) (56,216) (292) (408) (57,647)
FRERFE 1,381 981,100 576 1,276 984,333
R-Z——§+-A=1+-H
A 2260 1,049,194 950 1,811 1,054,215
ZEMERAE
(879) (68,094) (374) (535) (69,882)
EEFE 1,381 981,100 576 1,276 984,333
BE-Z--f
+ZA=+-ALEE
FEMRAFE 1,381 981,100 576 1,276 084,333
ERREES 2 7,353 1 3 7,359
NE - 343 120 - 463
HE - (349) - (32) (381)
& (750) (58,847) (354) (506) (60,457)
FIRIEAEE 633 929,600 343 74 931,317
RZE--E+-F=+-H
A 2277 1,057,711 1,074 1,792 1,062,854
SMERRE
(1,644)  (128,111) (731) (1,051)  (131,537)
FHFE 633 929,600 343 74 931,317

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BTISIRER MY & (4E)
16 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 16 Y% - #BERRE@
Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s ETROTEBERDBAEEREA
property, plant and equipment with carrying values of HK$916.0 916,000,000 & T ( = & — — F
million (2011: HK$966.7 million) (Note 27). 966,700,000/ 70) 2 & T ¥ - #aEM&
HBERR (P E27) ©
17 Construction in progress 17 BEETIRE
Total
et
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 January 2011 WZZE——F—H—H 501,515
Currency translation differences fERmE =5 8,862
Additions NE 27,119
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB =% - #s2 B4 (HiEE16)
(Note 16) (489,645)
At 31 December 2011 RN-_ZE——F+-_A=+—H 47,851
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 47,851
Currency translation differences ERT@ BHExE 613
Additions NE 20,877
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=+—H 69,341
Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s ETROEBERDBAEEEREA
construction in progress with carrying values of HK$6.5 million 6,500,000/% 7T ( —= & —— % ! 6,400,000
(2011: HK$6.4 million) (Note 27). BIT) 2B THEEIRERR(MFE27) °

TEBLRRREARLRA 117
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AR ERAR M ()

18 Prepaid land lease payments

118

At 1 January 2011

Currency translation differences
Additions

Amortisation

At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2012

Currency translation differences
Amortisation

Impairment

At 31 December 2012

18 T L BEERIEA

R=B——F—A—H
S

E

#

R-ZZE—F+-A=+—H

RZE——F—H—H

PE S E
B
BIE

Notes: Kt
(a) Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s prepaid (a)
land lease payments with carrying values of HK$14.1 million (2011:
HK$15.4 million) (Note 27).
(b) The prepaid land leases payments were held on lease of over 50 years (b)

in Mainland China.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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HK$’000
TAT

17,032
732
1,355
(1,062)

18,057

18,057

127
(1,132)
(2,733)

14,319

BEFRITEXTH L EEKEE
14,100,000 & or ( = & — — #F
15,400,000/87T ) 2 & F A4 L 1 7 B 5
EIEH (M at27) -

FET 1 45 78 B R T35 BIA BE AR 1550
FULBTFE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B R R ()

19 Intangible assets 19 BREEE
Computer Concession
software right Total
E TR et
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FET T
At 1 January 2011 R-—ZE——%—H—H
Cost AR 430 194,326 194,756
Accumulated amortisation and 2 &t 88 RoRE
impairment (300) (2,561) (2,861)
Net book amount REEE 130 191,765 191,895
Year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=-Z——F+=H
Et-HLFE
Opening net book amount FYRMEEE 130 191,765 191,895
Currency translation differences [ ¥, 1 H =28 1 6,751 6,752
Additions NE 155 - 155
Amortisation By (65) (11,224) (11,289)
Impairment loss RIERBE = (42,912) (42,912)
Closing net book amount FARREFE 221 144,380 144,601
At 31 December 2011 R=ZF——F+=A
=+-8
Cost AR 408 202,678 203,086
Accumulated amortisation and &M R EE
impairment (187) (58,298) (58,485)
Net book amount BREEE 221 144,380 144,601
Year ended 31 December 2012 BEZE_—F——fF
TZA=+—BLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 221 144,380 144,601
Currency translation differences [ X % H =58 7 1,022 1,029
Additions B 376 - 376
Amortisation o (116) (8,709) (8,825)
Impairment loss SRE R - (130,783) (130,783)
Closing net book amount FARREFE 488 5,910 6,398
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE—Z-HF+=H
=+—H
Cost BN 791 204,254 205,045
Accumulated amortisation and i R RE
impairment (303) (198,344) (198,647)
Net book amount BREFE 488 5,910 6,398

FEIBERRREARLAT 119
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR (E)

20 Interests in associated companies 20 REtE AR 2R

Group
TEH
2012 2011
—E--F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Group’s share of net assets REBEGEEEFE 1,099,031 1,098,713

The following financial information, after making adjustments
to conform with the Group’s significant accounting policies, BE - IAERSEEGRBE AT (R
represents the Group’s aggregate share of assets, liabilities, M AEIELTAR)Z2EE - BE - WERk
revenue and results of associated companies, all of which are 2ok HBR T

unlisted, and is summarised below:

THIMBER (RRBEAEREFR T EE

120

2012 2011
—E--F —T—%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHETT

Assets BEE 2,571,969 2,656,646
Liabilities afE (1,472,938) (1,557,933)
Net assets BEFE 1,099,031 1,098,713
Revenue Wz 283,456 281,936
Profit for the year INE E i A 80,667 67,376

Particulars of the associated companies are set out on page

146.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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21

Interests in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

Provision for impairment B R
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGIE €]
Provision for impairment VIR
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATFY B A R 3R IE

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. Their carrying amounts approximate their
fair values.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due to subsidiaries are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 143
and 145.

LT - B

21 RHBAT 2=

Company
ARATH
2012 2011
—g-—=-f -5
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT TET
89,252 89,214
(77,055) (76,810)
12,197 12,404
1,558,384 1,554,064
(65,726) -
1,492,658 1,554,064
______ (150,147) ____ (161,169)
1,354,708 1,405,305

MBEBARZEHAERER RERARE
REE - REEEEAFERS

FE YT~ AR 2 BREEAB TTAHE -

FERTFH B 2
@ -

AIFIE 2 BREE X Z B TTAT

FTEWNBARZHBHNRE143HEEFE145
g o

TEBLERREARAR 121
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22 Trade and other receivables

122

Note

Bt
Trade receivables FEUBR X (@)
Other receivables H h fE U R (b)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables is as follows:

Less than 30 days AH30H
More than 30 days and within 60 days BiA30AER60A K
More than 60 days and within 90 days HiB60HBMN0H K
More than 90 days R0 H

The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade customers.
Trade receivables that are less than 30 days past due are not
considered impaired. As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables
of HK$21.7 million (2011: HK$18.4 million) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to the government subsidies on the electricity
tariff which have not been allocated and distributed. Based on past
experience and industry practice, these tariff premiums are generally
paid in 6 to 12 months from the date of the sales recognition. As at 31
December 2012, there were HK$19.8 million (2011: HK$3.65 million)
trade receivables on alternative energy business being past due over
12 months. No impairment has been provided for these receivables
as the balances are not in dispute and there is no indication that the
amount will not be collectible.

Other receivables represent mainly input value-added taxation
recoverable of HK$27,519,000 (2011: HK$35,347,000) arising from
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
Annual Report 2012

22 FEUN AR FX I H {th FE WK
Group Company
A%H AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--fF T —F ZB--fF T —F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT TAT THERT TAT
104,449 69,321 - -
36,878 43,755 702 459
141,327 113,076 702 459
Hiat -
(@ R-F——FR-_F——F{ZA=+—

(b)

H - EREELZ SRR DT T

2012 2011
—g-—% —z——%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER T
82,749 50,901

- 1,839

- 681

21,700 15,900
104,449 69,321

AEFAAEZEFIREBEZ0H2 5
BEH - @ BR300 A 2 FEW R T #8
fERE - R=ZF——F+=A=+—H
JEW R #:21,700,000/8 T ( —F——4 :
18,400,000/ 7T ) B # BIE K B 1E - %
FRIB T B R K 73 B R I 3 B BT B B
B o BRIBHASBRRITEBL WETE
B — R IR 9 B AR H B e A6 2 12181 A
X e R=ZF—=—F+=-A=+—H XK
EEEBEBI1I2 A EREFEELE
W BR 7 #519,800,000/8 7L (= F——4 :
3,650,000/8 7T ) ° B R4 B T4 R AT ]
FE o WHEDSBEANEAS BTN
[5] » Bf 36 A B I S E Y 5K TR I R 1
{g °

H bW E Z 5 fEUETEIEE
# 27,519,000 %0 (= F — — F :
35,347,000/87T) * JIREBEYE - #
28R
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22 Trade and other receivables (continued) 22 e AR SRR ELfth B WK ()
Notes: (continued) Mt : (&)
(c) The carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other receivables is (©) I%@;E%ﬂﬁ%f&ﬁ@/@#ﬁ?ﬁZﬁE@@@(
denominated in the following currencies: THR*EE -
2012 2011
—EB-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 908 533
Renminbi AREE 140,387 112,513
Singapore dollars N T 32 30
141,327 113,076
(d) Al trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The (d) BB ENER R H A fEUC 0 61 & e (B
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying BE RIEAHEEERE 5B F
value of each class of receivables mentioned above. I ELEFEW T BREE -
Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s trade HEFRITEXTTHANEBFBKE B
receivables with carrying values of HK$70.7 million (2011: HK$44.1 70,700,000 ¥ 7t ( = & — — & :
million) (Note 27). 44,100,000/87T ) .2 & T FEH RS (EHE 7
(KizE27) -
23 Restricted cash 23 ZRHHRE
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Escrow account relating to a deposit held ST ERE # R A—IBEREERIE
for an alternative energy project BmMZFa2ER 1,014 1,002
The carrying amount is denominated in Renminbi. IREENARKEEE -
24 Cash and cash equivalents 24 RERBAEEEY
Group Company
N NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——-f —“T—F ZE--f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHT TER FET
Cash at bank and in hand RITMFEES 183,023 280,514 414 2,608
Short-term bank deposits g BIRTT 55,190 58,237 41,711 58,237
238,213 338,751 42,125 60,845
FEBLERERRERGRAT 123
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24 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

124

(a) Placed in banks in the PRC:
— denominated in Renminbi
- denominated in Hong Kong
dollars
— denominated in US dollars

— denominated in Macau dollars

— denominated in Euros

(b) Placed in banks in Hong Kong:

- denominated in Hong Kong
dollars

— denominated in Renminbi

- denominated in US dollars

- denominated in Singapore
dollars

(c) Cash in hand

(@) FRRFBER
—AARMHHE
— BT

~HETHE
— AR E
—ABRHTE

(b) FHRBRERT
— BTt

- RAR®EE

—PAETatE
— AF I TEHE

(c FHEEE

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as

follows:

Short-term bank deposits

ERIRITIEH

24 BERBEZEEY @)

Group Company
rEH NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--fF T F ZB-=F T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx TAT THERT TAT
31,669 24,199 - -
144,944 240,105 - =
4,689 6,137 - -
- 29 - -
- 17 - _
1,047 6,997 237 146
55,506 60,663 41,887 60,663
- 381 - 35
9 9 - =
349 214 1 1
238,213 338,751 42,125 60,845
REFZBZEBRFIZMT :
2012 2011
. —F—F
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT ARY BT AR¥
- 2.5% - 1.75%

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the cash and bank balances stated above.

The short-term bank deposits of the Group and the Company
have original maturities of one to two months.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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25 Share capital 25 R
Non-redeemable
Ordinary shares of convertible preference
HK$0.01 each shares of HK$0.01 each Total
SREEOIETLZ EREEOIETLZ
EER FARETRRE LR by
Number of Number of
Note shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 RGEE FEr RGEE T THR
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January 2011, R-Z—E-f-1-
31 December 2011, “E——&+-A=+-0-
1 January 2012 and —E--£-fA-A%
31 December 2012 ~§-—&+-f=t+-A 9,000,000,000 90,000 6,000,000,000 60,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: ERIRER .
At 1 January 2011 RZF——5-F-H 857,059,969 8,570 1,685,170,068 16,852 25,422
Exercise of bonus warrants 748 {7{B41 5|7k £ %748 (a) 54,879,940 549 - - 549
Exercise of bonus warrants 795 {741 7| R %795 (b) 59,261,866 593 - - 593
Conversion of convertible ARELR AR EER
preference shares to
ordinary shares ) 1,385,170,068 13,852 (1,385,170,068) (13,852) -
At 31 December 2011 RWZE——%+-A=+-H 2,356,371,843 23,564 300,000,000 3,000 26,564
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—%-f—H 2,356,371,843 23,564 300,000,000 3,000 26,564
At 31 December 2012 W-E——F+-A=1—-H 2,356,371,843 23,564 300,000,000 3,000 26,564
Notes: Bt -
(a  On 14 May 2009, the Company issued 76,353,475 warrants (Warrant (8 R-ZZFZFANFAATHEA  ALalIZRE

Code: 748) on the basis of one warrant for every ten existing shares
of the Company held by the shareholders (“Bonus Warrants 748”).
The holders of Bonus Warrants 748 are entitled to subscribe at any
time during 14 May 20170 to 13 May 2011 for fully paid shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.30 per share.

On 1 June 2010, the subscription price of Bonus Warrants 748 was
adjusted to HK$0.266 per share as a result of a new issue of bonus
warrants (Warrant Code: 795) and bonus shares in June 2010. Such
adjustment took retroactive effect from 30 April 2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, 54,879,940 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the exercise of 54,879,940
units of Bonus Warrants 748. As at 31 December 2011, all Bonus
Warrants 748 had lapsed.

FIHTREA R AHE R EE— (75348
WEEZHE  F7776,353,47517 B AR 1E
B (RIREZLLE - 748) ([AIFIRRR1EE
748]1) o ALFIZZIRIEZ 74875 BN BER
—E—TFERFAAZE-_FE——FAA
+=HHFA - B IZRE B AR0.30/%
TLARE R IR SRS -

KR=F—FFXA—A - AARERE
7482 M BEAR =T — TR FEITH
ATFIRIBE (RIE BT - 795) RAT
RIOTBEEGR0.2668T - ZEFHEE
S TEMASFARENEN -

B ——F - A=F—HIFE
54,879,940 K & X H 18 0.018 7T < 3T &
B F]54,879, 94017 AT FII iR AR #E 78 7487
ITEMET - R=ZF——FF—HA=4+—
B - T EALFIRIRAEE 7T48B K °

FEIBERRREARLAT 125
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25 Share capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

126

(b)

()

(@

(e)

On 9 June 2010, the Company issued 77,733,834 warrants (Warrant
Code: 795) on the basis of one warrant for every ten existing shares
of the Company held by the shareholders (“Bonus Warrants 7957).
The holders of Bonus Warrants 795 are entitled to subscribe at any
time during 9 June 20170 to 8 June 2011 for fully paid shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.60 per share. For the year ended 31
December 2011, 69,261,866 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued upon the exercise of 59,261,866 units of Bonus Warrants
795. As at 31 December 2011, all Bonus Warrants 795 had lapsed.

On 31 August 2010, the Company issued and allotted 1,385,170,068
convertible preference shares to HKC (Holdings) Ltd. The convertible
preference shares carry rights to convert into ordinary shares at the
initial conversion rate of 1 convertible preference share to 1 ordinary
share, such conversion rate being subject to customary adjustments.
On 27 October 2011, HKC (Holdings) Ltd converted 1,385,170,068
convertible preference shares into ordinary shares.

On 23 November 2010, the Company issued and allotted 300,000,000
convertible preference shares to STAR at HK$0.65 amounting to
HK$195 million to STAR for cash. STAR may at any time during the
ensuring 4 years require the Company to issue to them a maximum of
260,000,000 additional preference shares at a price of HK$0.75 per
additional preference share. The convertible preference shares carry
rights to convert into ordinary shares at the initial conversion rate of 1
convertible preference share to 1 ordinary share, such conversion rate
being subject to customary adjustments.

Share options are granted to employees, senior executives or officers,
managers, directors or consultants of any members of the Group or
any Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(ifi) the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on which
it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may specify at the
time of grant. An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the date of offer and
a consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon acceptance.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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25

&N

Hiat : ()

(b)

(c)

(@)

(e)

R-ZFE—FFNANA  ARAIERFE
HEFBRARNGRGRGESE—(7RR
EEZHE  F7777,733,83417 B AR 1E
(RIS - 795) ([AIFIA R 12
795]) o AT FlR IR 1B E 795+ B N B R
CEBENANAZTZE——FNAN
HAIRIA - BEAs %5708 (B 58 0.60/8 T 57
BHERFR G - BE—FT——F+—H
=1+ —HILFEE » 59,261,866 % 7 % E
160.01& 7T 2 #1 & 8 iR 159,261,866 17
AT FI R IRIE B 7O ETTIE T - R=F
—— A+ -A=+—H  BBAFRRE
FB7958 K3 o

R-ZFE—FFNA=+—H XR&EH
BEEER(FER) BN A#HTRE#
1,385,170,068 4% A] 12 iR (B 5 AR * AT 142 A%
B SE R AT 1201 A% AT 12 R (B S IR 56 1 R EAE
AR Z RI25 50 # bt 3 50 # K ZIBAR - I 5
HERZEOIFEER - R=F——F+A
—ttH BERRER)ERAFE
1,385,170,068/% A] 12 R (B L IR S #2152
BAT -

RZFE—ZFF+—HF=1+=H &
23 B8] B4 0.65 & 7T [f] STAR 2 77 & A #
300,000,000 4% (& {8 /5 195,000,000% 7T
Z AR RIAIR N H % ° STARAT R
FERITF B (0] b5 BT B S AR 1 Al A 2 AR 5B
SMEBEARO. 758 T 2 (B 1E A B = % %77
260,000,0008% BSMEBIL AR » ATHEAR B %
R f 75 1 I A #2218 A 12 % 4 SE R 3L 1 R
BN Z F) A 5 HA L KA IR AR - I
W IR KRBT IEGFHEMR -

R AL BE T EKE R A RE
ERCER BRITBARKETEASR
ARIE - BELBRERLIBRE -

TTEEERRLBUATEEE

() RORELABEBZFEERE
RATPKTTE

(i)  ROBEREHL AR AELEA
TR FT i B #RIER TS P
g R

(i) RIDEE -

BIRERRK L AR +F X EFET]
FERR M1 BF 15 95 < BAZ IR AT = 42
ERHZEBRES ZLH AL 1 EE
ROBRBRER - BRFREZN1ETH
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25 Share capital (continued) 25 WA a)

Notes: (continued)

(e) (continued)
As at 31 December 2012, 13,250,000 units (31 December 2011:
13,250,000 units) of share options remained outstanding and their
weighted average exercise price was HK$0.686 per share (31
December 2011: HK$0.686 per share).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of approximately 1.58 years.

Mt - (4&)

(e) (#)
RZFE—=ZF+=-H=+—H &H#
13,250,000/ (ZE——F+=—A=4+—
H : 13,250,000 i% ) f% F% #E 14 K % 77
& - mENE-FE7TEE R EFR0.686
BrT(ZF——F+=-A=+—H ' R
0.686/7T) °

R =—F——Ff =~ =+ —HEHRTRZ
FERIEZ 88 T INIEFHE 4 F R B491.58
£ o

26 Reserves 26 f##E

Employee
share-based  Convertible

Share  Exchange compensation note - equity Retained

premium reserve reserve  component, earnings Total
EERA THRREE

Group K5E R 5E B e HERE -EEs REEH fit

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T T T T

Balance at 1 January 2011 W_ZE——E—F—-Hz&% 944,491 53,766 1,631 6,261 625,796 1,631,945

Exercise of bonus warrants TR R AR R 49,014 - - - = 49,014

Currency translation differences [ AE 25 = 69,989 = = = 69,989

Employee share option benefits ~ {EE B RIEEF - = 1,574 = = 1,574

Profit for the year REE R = = - - 13,196 13,196
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZB——EF+-f=1-H

BB 998,505 123,755 3,205 6,261 638,992 1,765,718

Balance at 1 January 2012 RZZ-ZF-A—Hz&% 993,505 123,755 3,205 6,261 638,992 1,765,718

Currency translation differences ~ EHHEEE - 7,684 - - - 7,684

Employee share option benefits (& 8 B RER - - (93) - - (93)

Reversal of equity component of B EIATRREEER D2

convertible note - - - (6,261) 6,261 -

Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (82,742) (82,742)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-E-—E+-f=+—H

2tk 993,505 131,439 3,112 - 562,511 1,690,567

FEIBERERREARLAT 127
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26 Reserves (continued) 26 f#fE @)
Employee
Other share-based  Convertible
Share  Exchange reserve compensation note - equity Retained
premium reserve (Note) reserve  component earnings Total
RtfE  BERGY TEREER
Company AR ROEE  EXGR (W)  HERE -RESY  REER @it

Hk$000  HK000  HKO00  HKE000  HKE000  HKE000  HK§'000
TATL TATL TAT TATL TAT TATL TATL

Balance at 1 January 2011 R=F——F-A-H

L 944,491 33,613 98,709 1,631 6,261 105,160 1,189,865
Exercise of bonus warrants T AT R MR ER 49,014 = = = = = 49,014
Currency translation differences [E R E £ = 58,803 - - - = 58,803
Employee share option benefits £ 8 Bk iE 27 = = = 1,574 = = 1574
Profit for the year REEER = = - - - 47,218 47,218

Balance at 31 December 2011 R-E——%&+—f
=t-Re&H 993,505 92,416 98,709 3,205 6,261 152,378 1,346,474

Balance at 1 January 2012 RZE-—%-f-H
p

&
A

Ltk 993,505 92,416 98,709 3,205 6,261 152,378 1,346,474

Currency translation differences X A& £ - 1,606 - - - - 1,606

Employee share option benefits & 8 BERk#E 27 - - - (93) - - (93)
Reversal of equity component BB A[EREEERTH

of convertible note - - - - (6,261) 6,261 -

Loss for the year rEERR - - - - - (75,718) (15,718)

Balance at 31 December 2012 R=E——&+=f

=T-Rks 993,505 94,022 98,709 3,112 - 82,921 1,272,269
Note: The other reserve of the Company related to an acquisition prior to 1 Biat - AR mlz BEf#al - EE—F—H—H
January 20017 and continues to be held in reserves. B2 —IBUNHEEIEA R - L4458 LI (e

&4 o
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27 Bank borrowings 27 RITER
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Non-current IERH 552,247 618,334
Current mE 70,897 70,349
623,144 688,683

An amount of HK$343 million (2011: HK$380 million) of bank
borrowings is secured and guaranteed by the ultimate holding
company.

A $1343,000,000 L (—ZF — — F
380,000,000/ 70) Z SRITIEFKE T A -
I A AR R RIESEAR ©

An amount of HK$280 million (2011: HK$309 million) of bank
borrowings is secured and guaranteed by a fellow subsidiary.

/A $1280,000,000F L (ZF — — F
309,000,000/ 70 ) Z SRITIEFKE T A -
Wi —MERMEAREER -

Notes: B

(a)  The maturity of bank borrowings at the balance sheet date is as (a) REEHRTEKZIBHLT
follows:

2012 2011

—E--F —T——%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Within one year —FR 70,897 70,349

In the second year F-F 70,897 70,349

In the third year to fifth year F=FEERF 212,690 211,048

After the fifth year AF% 268,660 336,937

623,144 688,683

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Wholly repayable after 5 years ARRAFEREIEER 623,144 688,683

(b) Bank borrowings are denominated in Renminbi.

(c) The effective interest rate at the balance sheet date was 6.8%.

(d) Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and
equipment, construction in progress, prepaid land lease payments and

trade receivables of the Group (Notes 16, 17, 18 and 22).

(e) The Group did not have any undrawn borrowing facilities as of 31
December 2012 and 2011.

(b)  BRITEFUAREEE -

() REEHZEEFIEE68[E -

(d) RITEAXTIUREBEFYE - #ERKT
# HERETRE  BNLHHAESEREK
BRAEH A (HTat16 - 17 ~ 18%22) »

(6 R-F—-FR-_F——FF+_H=+—
H + RE B AR ISR E 5 £ 5E -

FEIBERRREARLT 129
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27

28

Bank borrowings (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(f) The carrying amount of bank borrowings approximates its fair value.
(9) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and

the contractual repricing dates or maturity (whichever is earlier) at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

NEAAZAT
RNETZEA

6 months or less
6-12 months

Convertible note

The Company issued a 6.4% interest bearing convertible note at
a par value of RMB75 million (equivalent to HK$93.2 million) on
18 December 2012. The note matures three years from the issue
date but can be early redeemed by both issuer and holder at its
nominal value of RMB75 million with accrued interest or can be
converted into shares at the holder’s option on any business day
during the conversion period at HK$0.68 per share.

The Company repaid a non-interest bearing convertible
note issued in 2009 at a par value of RMB73.5 million on 30
December 2012.

The effective interest rate at the balance sheet date was 6.03%
(2011: 3.00%).

The convertible note recognised in the balance sheet is
calculated as follows:

27

28

SRITER®)
Kiat : (&)

0  RITEAKEEEELFEEE -

@ REBEEZHRAEEEXEHFIEZE
B BRIEFEE AR ER A (L &R

ERE)WT
2012 2011
—B——f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
171,644 190,067
451,500 498,616
623,144 688,683
=9
ARRERE

KRR —_ZBE——F+_-_A+ 1\ B3
THEEA AR 75000,0007T (&R
93,200,000 70) 2 6.4 EE B AT R E
B BHEEARTARE] R=F3
H - BERTARBAEASTREREAR
#75,000,0007T:& R Z5H 5 B 1% 2 1R R &
B - skiF A AMEERBREBBREMNEE
AIZ&NR0.68B T2 B2 R ARG -

ARRIBERZE——F+-_A=+HEEZ
KRR BTN FRITEREAARYE
73,500,0007T.2 N B Al A% 22 4 o

NEEB 2 ERFIRE6.03E(ZT——
F:3E) e

REERBERER ZATBREEFENT

Group and Company

REBRARDT
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Face value and accrued interest expenses AR EIEEE L 25 SHL

of convertible note 93,519 87,684
Equity component of convertible note Al AR =R RE S B - (7,048)
Liability component of convertible note AR ER e EHD 93,519 80,636
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fRE IS Rk MY R ()

29 Deferred income tax liabilities 29 BEELEFMBHAR
The analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows: BIEFTSHBES AT :
Group Company
EE KAF
2012 2011 2012 2011

—F--F —T—F ZB--F T —F
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TAT

Deferred tax liabilities: ELERIEEE
- To be recovered after more than —EBRt+ @A %YE
12 months 37,523 61,677 - -
- To be recovered within 12 months —#R+ =@ A RKE 4,023 4,642 - 399
41,546 66,319 - 399
The movements in deferred income tax liabilities during the year ERN - BEEFREHABZEESNOT -
are as follows:
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
business Withholding  Convertible
combinations tax note Total
BB
aft2
DNEEFR BB THRRRE #at

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TET TR TET

At 1 January 2011 R-E——%—H—A (46,667)  (29,440) (787)  (76,894)
Currency translation differences fERRE = (1,553) (1,546) = (3,099)
Credited/(charged) to the profit or EiEHERAA ()
loss(Note 12) (PigzE12) 15,585 (2,299) 388 13,674
At 31 December 2011 NZB——F
+=-A=1+—H (32,635) (33,285) (399) (66,319)
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29 Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

132

At 1 January 2012 RZE——%—H—H
Currency translation differences EXBREESE
Credited/(charged) to the profit FEEERETAGOk)

or loss (Note 12) (BfEE12)
At 31 December 2012 R-_ZE——F+-A

=t+—H

At 1 January Rn—HA—H
Movement during the year FREE
At 31 December R+=—H=+—H”

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
HK$33,220,000 (2011: HK$17,957,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$117,308,000 (2011: HK$72,776,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income.
These tax losses have no expiry dates except tax losses of
HK$114,524,000 (2011: HK$69,991,000) which expire at
various dates up to 2017 (2011: 2016).

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
Annual Report 2012

29 EIEFBHEEw)

Fair value
adjustment
arising from
business Withholding  Convertible
combinations tax note Total
RE%xK
a2
DNRERR BHHR TRERRE st
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

(32,635)  (33,285) (399)  (66,319)
(279) (316) - (595)
29,861 (4,892) 399 25,368
(3,053)  (38,493) ~  (41,548)

Convertible note

TREERS
2012 2011
—g-=f -z 7
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiB FHT
(399) (787)
399 388

- (399)

7N 2 B 3 £ 5 &5 18 117,308,000/ T ( =
T — —4F : 72,776,00078 T ) fERIE T
Fr 18 # & 2 33,220,000 T (=& — —
& 17,957,000 70) AAEBHEEAE
JERBWA - ZEMBHEBELEERAR
B ME114,524,0008 0 (= F — —4F ¢
69,991,000/ 70 ) 2 BB BRI R E =
ZE—+HF(ZE——F: ZE—R"F)LE
ZTRBHER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

30 Derivative liability

31

The balance represents the subscription right granted to STAR,
and was fair valued at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables FE T BRX

Payables for acquisition and construction HRIEE MR ME - K
of property, plant and equipment A2 PR SR

Other payables and accruals H AR 3R R IEAT B

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the ageing analysis of trade
payables is as follows:

0 to less than 12 months Z PR+ =@A
12 months and more + @A & E

y

30 TATEERE
HEERIERISTARB L 2 REE - AN =%
——Fk_FE——F+=-A=+—H&%
FEHE -

31 ENRARREAMEMNRK

o
/N

N

Group Company
A%H AT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—B--fF T F ZB--fF T —F
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TERT THET TERT THET
199 827 - -

27,335 79,678 - =
11,317 25,091 3,033 3,166

38,851 105,596 3,033 3,166

MN_TE——FR-_FT——F+_fA=+—
B EBAERZERRITAT

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FET
199 822
- 5
199 827

FEIBERRREARLAT 133
—E-_FFR
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e MR (E)

31 Trade and other payables (continued) 31
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BT
Renminbi AR
Singapore dollars T

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the other payables of the
Company are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

32 Commitments 32

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet
incurred was as follows:

Group AEE

Capital expenditure in respect of ERAERERERZ
alternative energy projects: BEARY

Contracted but not provided for EEFEES T

Authorised but not contracted for BEREBRETL

The aggregate future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings were as follows:

Group KEE

No later than 1 year —&FR

Later than 1 year and no later than —FRERFA
5 years
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P A Rl 7K % LAtk PE A K ()
7R85 B A BR R R A A K2 R A
AT FIME

2012 2011
—E—_—F —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
3,740 5,341
35,096 100,216

15 39

38,851 105,596

RIE——FR=_F——F+=ZA=1+—
B RARZ H A SRAETEE -

A

REEREREERAREEZER

T
2012 2011
—EB-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
86,929 98,803
227,802 229,746
314,731 328,549

RIEE B L R BT 2 TR BUHL
EHEERREN 2REHEBE

W
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
559 1,514
- 1,101
559 2,615




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

33 Related party transactions
The Group entered into transactions with the following related
parties for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

(a)

Administrative services fee, which includes the office
overhead, and reimbursement of cost of internal
audit, legal and information technology department of
HK$1,414,000 (2011: HK$2,190,000) was paid to the
ultimate holding company.

Office rental of HK$926,000 (2011: HK$899,000) was paid
to the ultimate holding company.

Office rental of HK$ Nil (2011: HK$207,000) was paid to a
fellow subsidiary. The office rental was charged at terms
pursuant to agreements.

Property management fee of HK$ Nil (2011: HK$95,000)
was paid to a fellow subsidiary. The property management
fee was charged at terms pursuant to agreements.

Key management compensation
Key management solely represents directors of the
Company. The compensation paid or payable to key
management is shown as below:

Salaries and other benefits e REMET
Directors’ fees =Yk
Share-based compensation, net LARR D YER BN (5 %8)

Pension cost — defined contribution
scheme

The above related party transactions are continuing connected
transaction exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange.

o

H KRG

BAREKA —ERES

33

1

y

EEtL X5
BE_Z——_FR-_ZF——F+-A
=t HUEFEE  AEEQETIEES
RIS ZRHUT ©

@ MHEEBERIAAIMNITHEBREE
B BREBAEKEERAY  URE
NAEEET » EERE MBI
X A1,414,0008 0 (=8 ——F -
2,190,000/ 7T) °

b MEKERATAXAHRIZEED
926,000/ 7L (=F——* : 899,000
ABIT) °

© YEAMRRKBARAXINHAER
®(ZZF——% : 207,000 7T) © ##
NEM SRR & UL o

(d YEARRKBRFASHEER
B(ZZ——%F :95,000/87T) - W
B IR B AR 195 SR SR UG ©

) TEEEABZRM
TEERANBRR/ARFAEST-E
NRENETEERAS ZRBET

NN
2012 2011
—E-Cf —E——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
5,189 7,154
804 825
(93) 1,574
51 48
5,951 9,601

LB R B IRBE R FTE S LW AR
([ EmRAI) E14A.33 GBI EFA % E<F
BRRE  FEEZ 2EFRBYEERR
ERTE 2 FHERER S -
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AR ERAR M ()

33 Related party transactions (continued) 33 BHAERZ @)

()  As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company fH M-ZE—-—F+-A=+—H =K
provided guarantee to counter parties in respect of EBRARRDRGRE THE QR
credit facilities granted certain associated companies ERZEEBRERYFHRHEER
of HK$727,160,000 (2011: HK$195,947,000) and 727,160,000 8 L (= & — — & :
HK$559,247,000 (2011: HK$20,636,000) respectively. 195,947,000/ 7T ) 559,247,000

TL(ZZT——%F: 20,636,000/ 7T) °

The transaction did not constitute a connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BERXZANER LTRE14AZE
I EZRIER S -

34 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 34 HBEREHRERHE

2012 2011
—®8-=f —T——4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Loss before income tax including FriS iRl EE
discontinued operations (BEDKRIEEEER) (110,267) (7,803)
Finance costs A& B AR 51,174 49,716
Finance income BESUA (2,016) (2,546)
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe Ko i 70,414 69,998
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WERREE 2 WS
equipment (807) -
Impairment losses BB E R 133,516 42,912
Share of profits less losses of associated — FE(GEE A Al FRE 1B
companies (80,667) (67,376)
Fair value gain on derivative liability PTETREAE AT ERKE (7,140) (69,320)
Share-based compensation, net &S SR FH (B 58 (93) 1,574
Operating profit before working capital Rt BESBEF 2 K&
changes gl 54,114 17,155
Decrease/(increase) in inventory BERD,(HEm) 673 (971)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other JrE LA B TR % A FE U SR
receivables () m A (28,284) 48,695
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other FEAS BR 3N R HAth FB 5 3R
payables (R A), /& m (64,851) 1,423
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &< (FrH) A5 & (38,348) 66,302
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BTISIRER MY & (4E)
35 Discontinued operations 35 BRIEKEEK
The Group discontinued its business in software development AEERKIEESREREFBORYIEEE
(Shenzhen Namtek Company Limited). The results of this FRMERATF) - LEBZEEZIARE
business are reported as discontinued operations. AR PR FETE o
Financial information relating to the discontinued operations is BRI R B 2 BB ERT
as follows:
(@) Assets of disposal group as held for sale () FHESEZEBHEE
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 12,381 4,651
(b) Liabilities of disposal group as held for sale (b) BEZECEEHER
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Other payables AN 7 2
() Cumulative income recognised in other (c) REMEZEWABREEIES
comprehensive income relating to disposal group BREFEZEBEAZETTEA
classified as held for sale
2012 2011
—E-CF —F——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Currency translation differences [ERIRE =58 2,539 2,443
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35 Discontinued operations (continued)

Analysis of the result of discontinued operations is as

35 BRIEEEEE @)

ERIERERB 2 REDTWT

2012 2011
—E-—fF —=——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHET
142 792
(42) (4,278)
100 (3,486)
100 (3,486)
BEBZ
100 (3,486)

follows:

Revenue and other income Wezs K EAtb U A

Expenses FZ

Profit/(loss) before taxation of B IH R 5T 2 iR
discontinued operations A, (Estg)

Taxation A

Profit/(loss) from discontinued ERIEREEL S
operations =R (&)

Profit/(loss) for the year from AT RE(R 2R B B &R LR
discontinued operations NEE A, (BE)
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company —ERAREEFEEA
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35 Discontinued operations (continued) 35

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR ERAR M ()

(¢) Cumulative income recognised in other (c)
comprehensive income relating to disposal group
classified as held for sale (continued)

The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued

operations are as follows:

sheet
31 December 2011
Trade and other receivables (Note 22)
Restricted cash (Note 23)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)

Total

31 December 2012

Trade and other receivables (Note 22)
Restricted cash (Note 23)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)

Total

Operating cash flows KERSRE
Investing cash flows RERERE
Total net cash flows RIBREFRA
36 Financial instruments by category 36 &
Group RE
Assets as per consolidated balance R EEABRITEE

RZF——%F+=-A=+—H
PR RR SR e Hoth R MR R (BTRE22)
RRERE (KF23)
ReERREEEY (MiE24)

st
R-B——F+-A=1+—8H
FEMBR R H ek (B FE22)

XRHIBES (EE23)
RehkReFEY (KiE24)

ok

BARIEKREER @)

REM2ERABRZEEIES
BESEZEEMAS RKA
(&)

BRI EEBREERS B SE
o -

2012
—E-C—fF
HK$’000
TER

2011
—T——4%F
HK$’000
THET

(30)
7,594

(2,594)
(6,741)

7,564 (9,335)

Bl 8 5

TZERT A

Loans and
receivables
BERRERR
HK$’000
FHT

113,076
1,002
338,751

452,829

141,327
1,014
238,213

380,554

HEBLRRREARDA
T _FFR
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36 Financial instruments by category (continued) 36 RERIE D ZE£RM T E @)

Liabilities Financial
at fair liabilities
value through  at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BRAFEE 1R 85 A A
BERIIE SRz
Z8& EA =N Mt
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET FHET
Liabilities as per consolidated RS EERBRA
balance sheet ~EfE
31 December 2011 RZE——%F
+=-—A=+—8
Bank borrowings (Note 27) RITIER(HI5E27) - 688,683 688,683
Convertible note (Note 28) AR EIR (Hf5E28) = 80,636 80,636
Derivative liability (Note 30) PTETAAE
(FfF3E30) 9,370 = 9,370
Trade and other payables (Note 31)  FE{TBR X & E b
FEART R (B5EST) - 105,596 105,596
Total wast 9,370 874,915 884,285
31 December 2012 R-ET—=
t=—A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note 27) RITIER(HI5E27) - 623,144 623,144
Convertible note (Note 28) AR E& (H5E28) = 93,519 93,519
Derivative liability (Note 30) PHETEARE
(FfF3E30) 2,150 = 2,150
Trade and other payables (Note 31)  FE{TBR R & E fib
FERT R (MIEEST) - 38,851 38,851
Total 5T 2,150 755,514 757,664
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36 Financial instruments by category (continued) 36 ZRERIB P Z2E€MITE @)

Company P/ /N
Loans and
receivables
ERRERK
HK$’000
FET
Assets as per balance sheet REEBBRFITEE
31 December 2011 RZE——F+=-A=+—H
Other receivables (Note 22) H b Uk (FFEE22) 459
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 21)  FEULHI B A F1F0E (KisE21) 1,554,064
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) RekBeEEW(M:E24) 60,845
Total HEt 1,615,368
31 December 2012 RZE——f+=-A=+—H
Other receivables (Note 22) H i UK (M 5E22) 702
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 21)  FEUHT B A F3x1E (FisE21) 1,492,658
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) Re MREEBY(HE24) 42,125
Total st 1,635,485
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36 Financial instruments by category (continued) 36 RERIE D ZE£RM T E @)

Liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities
through  at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RAFEE TR 8 B AR
BERIIER 1)
A= A= -RE wat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHT
Liabilities as per balance sheet REEEBRFIRAER
31 December 2011 RZTB——F
+=—A=+—H
Convertible note (Note 28) AR R IR (F5E28) - 80,636 80,636
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASH B B A B FR A
(Note 21) (FfF5E21) = 161,163 161,163
Derivative liability (Note 30) PTAETABEME30) 9,370 - 9,370
Other payables (Note 31) H A ET SR (FIEEST) = 3,166 3,166
Total st 9,370 244,965 254,335
31 December 2012 RZZT—=%F
+=-A=+—8H
Convertible note (Note 28) AT AR =4 (FP5E28) = 93,519 93,519
Amounts due to subsidiaries Rl INENGIE e
(Note 21) (MtzE21) - 150,147 150,147
Derivative liability (Note 30) PTETAEAEMIFE0) 2,150 = 2,150
Other payables (Note 31) E A SR (BT EE31) = 3,033 3,033
Total Rt 2,150 246,699 248,849
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37 Principal subsidiaries and associated 37

companies

Listed below are the subsidiaries and associated companies
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the result

and/or net assets of the Group.

Name

&8

Subsidiaries

Shenzhen Namtek Company Limited
(Note)**

A EFRIMARAR (i)~

Best Whole Holdings Limited*
REBRER AR

Joy Holdings Limited*

B RO T EEREARAR

Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi Il)
Wind Power Limited*
BEHR (IFEHE_8) ma
YN

HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited*
BEIER (KW) ERERAA)N

HKE (Wind Power} Holdings Limited"
BEHER (BE) BRAERA

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

kind of legal entity
EMAY SEBER
EEERER

WEAR

PRC/
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

hEEEELE

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands
RERLEE

PRC/
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

hE/ R ELE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
0

British Virgin Islands
RBRAHE

g

Issued share

FTEMNBLAARKERT

y

T%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ%$%giﬁﬁ/ﬁ§
EFEBREIEXEZHEBER

REpE A

capital/Paid
Principal up registered Percentage of equity/Paid
activities capital up registered capital held
BRTRABE
FTEXH gMER  FHER BREEMERESL
2012 2011
. 2%
Inactive US$800,000 100% 100%
TEax 800,000%7T
Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
REZR BT
Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
REER 1%
Wind power project in RMB172,526,500 100% 100%
Siziwang Qi, Inner ARE
Mongolia 172,526,5007T
INAEUR RS-
EWIE-C !
Investment holding HK$1,000 100% 100%
REER 1,000/ 7T
Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
REBER 1B
Investment holding USs$1 100% 100%
REER 127
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37 Principal subsidiaries and associated 37 FEMBRAERKE LT

companies (continued)

Place of Issued share
incorporation/ capital/Paid
operation and Principal up registered Percentage of equity/Paid
Name kind of legal entity activities capital up registered capital held
BRI EE R BRITRABE
8 ERERER FTEXH TAMER  FEHERBHERERES L
2012 2011
—B--f T
Subsidiaries BT
China Renewable Energy (Services) Hong Kong Human resources HK$1 100% 100%
Limited 58 management 187T
REBRERR(ERE)ERAR ANERER
HKE Danjinghe (BVI) Wind Power British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1,000 100% 100%
Limited** EBRUES BREER 1,000 7T
BERERN (BV) Eak
BRRAA
HKE (BVI) Limited** British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
BAETER BV) BRA R RBRAEE REER E
HKE (Gansu) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
AR (UM BENRERAR BB/ HE REER 18T
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi)  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$2 100% 100%
Wind Power Limited* BB/ H REER 28T
BRFER(EFTHE)Rae
BARRA)N
HKC (Linyi) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
BRRR(BT)BERERD A &A/HE REER 18T
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited*  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$4 100% 100%
EAMER(ERT)AEBRAR B/ PE REZR BT
Sinoriver International Limited** British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
IR AR R RBRERRE/HE  REER E
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37 Principal subsidiaries and associated 37 FEMBARIREE AR (@)

companies (continued)

Place of Issued share
incorporation/ capital/Paid
operation and Principal up registered Percentage of equity/Paid
Name kind of legal entity activities capital up registered capital held
EMARY SR BRITRE/BH
A% EEERER TEEH AMER  FEHERBHERERES L
2012 2011
—g-=8  —3—%
Subsidiaries MEATR
Sinoriver International (Wind Power) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$20 100% 100%
Limited* B/ REER 208 7T
H)IIEE(RE)BRAR:
APC Wind Power Pte Limited** Singapore Investment holding SGD10 100% 100%
EiimlIb REZR 1087 & T
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang)** PRC/ Wind Power project in HK$100,000,000 86% 86%
Company Limited Sino-foreign equity joint Heilongjiang, the PRC 100,000,000
SMEANEEHST)BR A venture R ERET B BT
B/ IEERE BIEA
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) PRC/ Wind Power project in HK$150,100,000 86.68% 86.68%
Company Limited** Sino-foreign equity joint Heilongjiang, the PRC 150,100,000
EERNBEE(BE)AERDA venture RPERELZEAN BT
HE/ R ERE BIEA
BREAERNFEIEREAERRAY  PRO/ Wind Power project in RMB166,480,000 100% 100%
Sino-foreign equity joint Siziwang Qi, Inner ARE
venture Mongolia, the PRC 166,480,0007T
RE/HHNRELE RPERNFERTIE
ZENEEER
PEBERFRIREERAR 145
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37 Principal subsidiaries and associated

companies (continued)

Name

1

Associated companies

CECIC HKC Wind Power Company
Limited*#

HEfig R NEE(RL)
BB AR

CECIC HKE Wind Power Company
Limited*#

HEfg R RN BB (RL)
BR AR

CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power
Company Limited+*

hERBR(HRENEE
BR AR

Linyi National Environmental New Energy
Company Limited+*

B PR AL RA R A A

Note: Shenzhen Namtek Company Limited has applied for voluntary

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

kind of legal entity
AR, EEBER
ERERER

BENT

PRC/
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

PE/PIAERE

PRC/
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

PR/ PIAERE

PRC/
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

PR/ PIAERE

PRC/
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

PR/ PIAERE

37 FENMBATIRBE AT (@

Issued share

capital/Paid
Principal up registered Percentage of equity/Paid
activities capital up registered capital held
BRITREBH
TEEH AMER  FEHERBHERERES L
2012 2011
—B-=f —2——F
Wind power project in RMB545,640,000 40% 40%
Danjinghe, Hebei, the AR
PRC 545,640,0007T
PR A B 0 2 B
BEH
Wind power project in RMB323,260,000 30% 30%
Lunaobao, Hebei, the ARE
PRC 323,260,0007T
NGIENEBIgod - kA
FHH
Wind power project in RMB589,620,000 40% 40%
Changma, Gansu, the AR
PRC 589,620,0007T
REEHRESZEN
FHH
Waste-to-energy project RMB100,000,000 40% 40%
in Linyi, Shandong, the ARE
PRC 100,000,0007T
PR B L SR BT 2 B3R
FHH

Wit - R EF RN ERR AIE Hi5 6 BE

liquidation. #
Remarks: it
3 Interest held by subsidiaries & s Mﬁ%?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ\
# Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers & E?FE%&W%}E@E%EW%%?&%&
o Unofficial English transliterations or translations for identification o FEE RN FESEE - EHE

purpose only
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Five-year Financial Summary

hFMBERBE

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
Revenue
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit before
income tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Income tax credit/(expense)
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit for the year
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/profit attributable
to equity holders of the
Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Consolidated balance sheet
Net current assets
Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

Net assets including
non-controlling interests
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—F--fF % ZT-FTF ZTTNF ZTITN\F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TR FTET THET THAT FTAET
99,513 89,897 17,897 - -

- 792 6,213 10,609 13,877

99,513 90,689 24,110 10,609 13,877
(110,367) (4,317) 365,233 6,340 (35,272)
100 (3,486) (5,513) (3,686) (66,398)
(110,267) (7,803) 359,720 2,654  (101,670)
15,648 12,369 (25,399) (14,862) 1,092

- - 1,003 526 5,871

15,648 12,369 (24,396) (14,336) 6,963
(94,719) 8,052 339,834 (8,522) (34,180)
100 (3,486) (4,510) (3,160) (60,527)
(94,619) 4,666 335,324 (11,682) (94,707)
11,877 8,630 987 1,251 4,987
(82,842) 16,682 340,821 (7,271) (29,193)
100 (3,486) (4,510) (3,160) (60,527)
(82,742) 13,196 336,311 (10,431) (89,720)
193,900 198,589 265,317 170,296 287,911
2,120,406 2,293,555 2,231,471 217,368 36,522
(593,793)  (684,653)  (815,741) (80,650) (1,709)
1,720,513 1,807,491 1,681,047 307,014 322,724
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Five-year Financial Summary (continued)

AEPBENRER)

Share capital
Reserves
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

(Loss)/earnings per share
— basic
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Dividend per share
— attributable to the year
Return on total equity (note)

Note:

Return on total equity represents the current year’s profit/loss for the year
expressed as a percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned.
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—F--fF % ZT-FTF ZTTNF ZTITN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBxT FHET FHET FET FHETT
26,564 26,564 25,422 7,726 7,635
1,690,567 1,765,718 1,631,945 299,288 301,176
3,382 15,209 23,680 = 13,913
1,720,513 1,807,491 1,681,047 307,014 322,724
(3.51) 1.42 40.2 (0.95) (3.82)

- (0.30) (0.53) (0.41) (7.93)

(3.51) 1.12 39.67 (1.36) (11.75)

Nil4= Nil4E Nil4E Nil4= Nil &
(5.5%) 0.3% 19.9% (3.8%) (29.3%)
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